DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2015; 3:00 p.m.

DUPAGE AIRPORT FLIGHT CENTER
2700 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE
WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60185

TENTATIVE AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
PUBLIC COMMENT
APPROVAL OF MINUTES TAB #1 PAGE #4

May 20, 2015 Regular Board Meeting

May 6, 2015 Internal Policy and Compliance Committee Meeting

May 20, 2015 Finance, Budget and Audit Committee

May 20, 2015 Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TAB #2 PAGE #19

REPORT OF OFFICERS/COMMITTEES

a. Internal Policy and Compliance Committee

Finance, Budget & Audit Committee

Golf Committee

Capital Development, Leasing & Customer Fees Committee
DuPage Business Center

caoT

NEW BUSINESS
a. Proposed Ordinance 2015-285; 2015-2016 Prevailing Rate of Wages
Finance Committee TAB #3 PAGE #29



Proposed Resolution 2015-1955; Award of Contract to Builders Chicago
Corporation for Replacement of Four (4) Electric Gate Operators.

Approves a Contract for the replacement of four (4) Ideal Tilt-Away Electric Gate
Operators on the Flight Center Ramp. Total authorized construction cost of
§110,003.25, which includes a 5% owner’s contingency.

Finance Committee TAB #4 PAGE #39

Proposed Resolution 2015-1956; Authorizing the Execution of a Second
Amendment to Task Order 18 with CH2M Hill, Inc. for Transient Hangar Bridging
Document Preparation.

Approves a 540,000 increase to CH2M Hill Task Order 18 — Transient Hangar
Design-Build Bridging Document Preparation. The amended total design fee is
$224,000. Such increase is necessary to simplify design features that will meet
budgetary requirements.

Capital Development Committee TAB #5 PAGE #44

Proposed Resolution 2015-1957; Concept Plan Approval for Modifications to
2505 Enterprise Circle.

Approves Concept Plan Modifications to 2505 Enterprise Circle without variations
to either Section 10.5 of the West Chicago Zoning Ordinance or the Minimum
Design Standards for the DuPage Business Center in anticipation of the possible
change in user from Pella to Simpson Strong-Tie. Said approval is subject to
further review and approval of the Development Plan by the city of West Chicago
and the DuPage Airport Authority.

Capital Development Committee TAB #6 PAGE #48

Proposed Resolution 2015-1959; Concept Plan Approval for Expansion of
Building at 2500 Enterprise Circle.

Approves Concept Plan with variations in anticipation of possible expansion of
building located at 2500 Enterprise Circle. Said approval is subject to further
review and approval of the Development Plan by the City of West Chicago and the
DuPage Airport Authority.

Capital Development Committee TAB #7 PAGE #51

Proposed Resolution 2015-1960; Authorizing the Execution of an Easement
Agreement with DuPage County.

A resolution authorizing execution of a permanent drainage easement and access
easement with DuPage County to permit DuPage County to access and maintain
the Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir.

Capital Development Committee TAB #8 PAGE #58

Discussion of West Chicago Tax Incentive Plan.



10.

11.

12.

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE DISCUSSION OF PENDING, PROBABLE OR
IMMINENT LITIGATION; EMPLOYEE MATTERS; THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL
PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY AND THE SETTING
OF A PRICE FOR SALE OR LEASE OF PROPERTY OWNED BY THE DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY.

RECONVENE REGULAR SESSION
OTHER BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Wednesday, May 20, 2015

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority was
convened at the DuPage Flight Center, 2700 International Drive, West Chicago, lllinois, First
Floor Conference Room; Wednesday, May 20, 2015. Chairman Davis called the meeting to order
at 3:30 p.m. and a quorum was present for the meeting.

Commissioners Present: Chavez, Davis, Donnelly, Huizenga, LaMantia, Ledonne,
Posch, Sharp, Wagner
Commissioners Absent: None

DuPage Airport Authority Staff Present: David Bird, Executive Director; Mark Doles, Director of
Aviation Facilities and Properties; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf
Club; John Schlaman, Manager of Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan Barna, Procurement Manager;
Anna Normoyle, Marketing Manager; Brad Dopke, IT Specialist; Pamela Miller, Executive
Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others in Attendance: Phil Luetkehans, Schirott, Luetkehans and Garner; Michael Vonic, CH2M
Hill; Michael Toth, J.A. Watts, Inc.; Mike Loftus, Resident; Don Saltz, DuPage County Resident;
Jim Savio, Sikich.

Members of the Press:
None

PUBLIC COMMENT
None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the March 18, 2015 Regular
Board Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Posch made a MOTION to approve the
minutes of the March 18, 2015 Regular Board Meeting and Commissioner Chavez seconded the
motion. The motion was passed unanimously by roll call vote (9-0).

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the April 9, 2015 Special
Board Meeting and there were none. Commissioner LaMantia made a MOTION to approve the
minutes of the April 9, 2015 Special Board Meeting and Commissioner Ledonne seconded the
motion. The motion was passed unanimously by roll call vote (9-0).

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the March 4, 2015 Internal
Policy and Compliance Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Wagner made
a MOTION to approve the minutes of the March 4, 2015 Internal Policy and Compliance
Committee Meeting and Commissioner Donnelly seconded the motion. The motion was passed
unanimously by roll call vote (9-0).



Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the March 18, 2015 Finance,
Budget and Audit Committee Meeting and there were none. Commissioner Huizenga made a
MOTION to approve the minutes of the March 18, 2015 Finance, Budget and Audit Committee
Meeting and Commissioner Sharp seconded the motion. The motion was passed unanimously
by roll call vote (9-0).

Chairman Davis asked for additions or corrections to the minutes of the March 18, 2015 Capital
Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee Meeting and there were none.
Commissioner LaMantia made a MOTION to approve the minutes of the March 18, 2015 Capital
Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee Meeting and Commissioner Ledonne
seconded the motion. The motion was passed unanimously by roll call vote (9-0).

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Executive Director Bird was not present during this portion of the meeting and Mark Doles
provided this report.

Mr. Doles discussed the monthly operating statistics:

March was a good fuel month with 100LL fuel sales increased 8%; Jet A fuel sales increased 12%
for the month. Total Fuel Sales Year-to-Date increased 6% from March 2014. There was a slight
decrease in April which is historically true for the month of April. May figures are on track with
even a slight increase at this point. Discussion followed.

Mr. Doles advised the Grand Opening of Vertiport Chicago was held on April 30 and a number of
staff and Board Members were present.

CenterPoint Properties Trust has scheduled the Groundbreaking for DS Containers on May 27.
This event will take place at the DuPage Business Center at 9:30 a.m. on the actual site.

Brad Dopke, IT specialists for the Airport Authority was invited by the Board to review the
process to access the newly established email addresses for Board members. Going forward
Board Members will receive all Airport Authority business information on the Airport Authority
network.

Executive Director Bird arrived and continued with the Director’s Report. He advised the Interim
Director of the Illinois Division of Aeronautics’ and another member of his staff would visit the
Airport on Thursday for a tour and lunch. Discussion followed.

Mr. Doles reported on the progress of the new hangar construction project. He advised staff
along with Engineering Consultants CH2M Hill, put together request for qualifications (RFQ) and
with this process three firms were selected to provide proposals. The special design
architectural features for the hangar were driving up the cost of the project more than
anticipated. He related that even if the contract could be negotiated at this point actual hangar
construction would not be completed until 2016. Mr. Doles added that staff will work with
CH2M Hill to amend the contract to bring down costs to the $10 million range. Discussion
followed.



Executive Director Bird asked Mike Toth of J. A. Watts Inc. to provide the Capital Projects
update. Mr. Toth advised that staff meets weekly to monitor the progress for ongoing projects.
He proceeded to review each of these projects and discussion followed.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Executive Director Bird asked Patrick Hoard to provide a review of the Financial Statements and
discussion followed.

REPORT OF COMMITTEES

Internal Policy and Compliance Committee:

Commissioner LaMantia reported that on May 6, the Internal Policy and Compliance Committee
met to review revisions to the DAA Employee Handbook. This appears as Agenda item 8.b.
under the New Business. The Committee unanimously recommended Board approval of
Ordinance 2015-284.

Finance, Budget and Audit Committee:

Commissioner Huizenga advised that Jim Savio from the firm of Sikich provided the Annual
Financial Audit Report. He stated there were no items of any material consequence and the
Airport Authority received a very positive report. Commissioner Huizenga stated that the issue
of abating the property tax levy was discussed and the Committee made a recommendation to
the Board for approval of $500,000 in the 2016 budget year for abatement of property taxes
collected in 2015. Discussion followed. Commissioner Huizenga advised that New Business
agenda items 8.c., d., e. and f. were unanimously recommended by the Committee for Board
approval.

Golf Committee:

Commissioner Donnelly stated the Golf Committee did not have a May meeting however he met
with John Schlaman prior to this meeting. He related that the opening of Kautz Road and Rt. 38
is anticipated for mid-July. Commissioner Donnelly reported that the Golf Now Deal Caddy
Promotion is ongoing and 816 rounds have been sold; vouchers expire May 24.

He added that golf course renovations are nearly completed and many positive comments have
been received regarding the improved course conditions. Weather has caused some delays and
golf course staff still needs to complete installation of the irrigation system. Staff is also dealing
with a collapsed drain line under Hole #1 putting green and Hole #4 tee box area. Discussion
continued regarding the projects to be undertaken at the golf club in 2015; golf cart path repair
and new entrance signage.

Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees:
Commissioner Wagner reported Agenda Items 8.g. and h. under New Business were discussed
by the Committee and recommended unanimously for Board approval.

DuPage Business Center:

Ed Harrington of CenterPoint Properties Trust was not present. Executive Director Bird
discussed briefly a potential concept plan that may be brought before the Board at the June
meeting for consideration. Executive Director Bird also mentioned the May 27 Groundbreaking
for DS Containers at the Business Center.



NEW BUSINESS

Presentation and Review of the Annual Financial Audit.

Mr. Hoard introduced Jim Savio with the firm of Sikich who will present to the Board the Annual
Financial Audit Report. Mr. Savio thanked Airport Authority staff for their assistance throughout
the audit process. Mr. Savio advised that on November 13, 2014 a planning meeting was held,
and preliminary field work began on December 17, 2014. He continued that final field work
ended by February 23, 2015, a draft audit report was provided on March 18 with the final audit
report presented on April 2, 2015. He continued to review the highlights of the financial audit
report and stated that an unmodified opinion was issued which is the highest opinion to be
given in the audit process. Discussion followed.

Proposed Ordinance 2015-284; An Ordinance Enacting a Revised DuPage Airport Authority
Employee Handbook.

Executive Director Bird read into the record Proposed Ordinance 2015-284 and advised this was
vetted at the Policy Committee and unanimously recommended for Board approval.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner LaMantia to approve Proposed Ordinance 2015-284; An
Ordinance Enacting a Revised DuPage Airport Authority Employee Handbook. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Ledonne and was passed by roll call vote (9-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1941; Authorizing the Execution of a Non Federal Reimbursable
Agreement Between the Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration and
the DuPage Airport Authority to Provide Airport Traffic Control (ATC) Services at the DuPage
Air Traffic Control Tower.

Approves an Agreement between the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) and the DuPage
Airport Authority whereby the FAA will provide staffing of the DuPage Air Traffic Control Tower
from 10:00 PM to 6:00 AM for the period of October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016. Total
authorized cost of 5477,898.37.

Executive Director Bird read into the record this proposed resolution and advised the Finance
Committee unanimously recommended Board approval. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2015-1941;
Authorizing the Execution of a Non Federal Reimbursable Agreement Between the Department
of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration and the DuPage Airport Authority to Provide
Airport Traffic Control (ATC) Services at the DuPage Air Traffic Control Tower. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Huizenga and was passed by roll call vote (9-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1942; Resolution for the Disposal/Destruction of Surplus Personal
Property.

Approves the disposition of surplus property by internet auction. Items include a 1991 John
Deere Tractor, 1995 Chevy Pickup Truck, and 2003 Chevy Van.

Executive Director Bird read into the record this proposed resolution and advised the Finance
Committee unanimously recommended Board approval. No further discussion occurred.



A MOTION was made by Commissioner Posch to approve Proposed Resolution 2015-1942;
Resolution for the Disposal/Destruction of Surplus Personal Property. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was passed by roll call vote (9-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1943; Award of Contract to Excel Mechanical Services, LLC. for Heat
and A/C Unit Replacement at the Travel Express and American Flyers Hangars.

Approves a Contract for replacement of two (2) A/C units at the Travel Express Hangar and four
(4) eat and A/C split system units at the American Flyers Hangar. Total authorized construction
cost of $54,444.50, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency.

Executive Director Bird read into the record this proposed resolution and advised the Finance
Committee unanimously recommended Board approval. No further discussion occurred.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Wagner to approve Proposed Resolution 2015-1943;
Award of Contract to Excel Mechanical Services, LLC. for Heat and A/C Unit Replacement at the
Travel Express and American Flyers Hangars. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Ledonne and was passed by roll call vote (9-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1945; Award of Contract to Gate Options for Replacement of Three
(3) Electric Gate Operators.

Approves a Contract for replacement of three (3) Hy-Security electric gate operators, drive rails
and loop detectors. Total authorized construction cost of 542,714, which includes a 5% owner’s
contingency.

Executive Director Bird read into the record this proposed resolution and advised the Finance
Committee unanimously recommended Board approval. No further discussion occurred.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to approve Proposed Resolution 2015-1945;
Award of Contract to Gate Options for Replacement of Three (3) Electric Gate Operators.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was passed by roll call vote (5-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1944; Authorizing the Execution of Change Order No. 1 with K-Plus
Mechanical, Inc. for Fuel Farm Upgrades.

Approves 1 125,908 Change Order for excavation and repair of failed underground secondary
containment fuel piping. Increases existing Contract from $303,955 to $429,863, total
authorized construction cost not-to-exceed $475,456.25, which includes a 15 owner’s
contingency.

Executive Director Bird read into the record this proposed resolution and advised the Capital
Development Committee unanimously recommended Board approval. No further discussion
occurred.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to approve Proposed Resolution 2015-1944;
Authorizing the Execution of Change Order No. 1 with K-Plus Mechanical, Inc. for Fuel Farm
Upgrades. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Posch and was passed by roll call vote
(9-0).



Proposed Resolution 2015-1946; Ratification of the Executive Director’s Execution of a
Professional Services Agreement with Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. for Civil Design,
Storm Water and Wetland Consulting Services — Pond | Modification to provide PCBMPs at the
DuPage Business Center.

Ratification of a Professional Services Agreement with Christopher Burke Engineering to provide
storm water and consulting services for the DuPage Business Center and the permitting of storm
water improvements for Pond |.

Executive Director Bird read into the record this proposed resolution and advised the Capital
Development Committee unanimously recommended Board approval. Attorney Luetkehans
pointed out the need for one minor modification in the resolution changing “Pond 1" to “Pond

|”

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Wagner to approve Proposed Resolution 2015-1546;
Ratification of the Executive Director’s Execution of a Professional Services Agreement with
Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. for Civil Design, Storm Water and Wetland Consulting
Services — Pond | Modification to provide PCBMPs at the DuPage Business Center; subject to the
modification made to the resolution as discussed. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Chavez and was passed by roll call vote (9-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1947; Disclosure of Executive Session Minutes.

Executive Director Bird read into the record this proposed resolution. Attorney Luetkehans
advised if there are no questions or issues with the recommended executive session minutes to
be disclosed, an Executive Session would not be necessary. All Board Members agreed with the
recommended Executive Session minutes to be disclosed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Wagner to approve Proposed Resolution 2015-1947;
Disclosure of Executive Session Minutes. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez
and was passed by roll call vote (9-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1948; A Resolution Authorizing the Destruction of Certain Verbatim
Recordings of Closed Sessions.

Executive Director Bird read into the record this proposed resolution. Attorney Luetkehans
advised that statute allows for the destruction of old verbatim recordings of executive sessions
after the required 18 month time period. Attorney Luetkehans added that if the Board agreed
with his recommendations, these tapes will be destroyed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner LaMantia to approve Proposed Resolution 2015-1948; A
Resolution Authorizing the Destruction of Certain Verbatim Recordings of Closed Sessions.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sharp and was passed by roll call vote (9-0).

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
There was no Executive Session held.



OTHER BUSINESS

Discussion occurred briefly regarding the progress of the Oliver Hoffman property litigation for
140 acres located just off North Avenue. The Airport Authority is acquiring this property for the
purpose of noise control for the Airport. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Sharp to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the DuPage
Airport Authority Board of Commissioners. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Ledonne and was passed unanimously by voice vote; the meeting was adjourned at 4:45 p.m.

Stephen L. Davis
Chairman
(ATTEST)

Gina R. LaMantia
Secretary

10



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
INTERNAL POLICY AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Wednesday, May 6, 2015
DuPage Airport Authority
Flight Center Building
2700 International Drive
West Chicago, Illinois 60185

The Internal Policy and Compliance Committee of the DuPage Airport Authority Board of
Commissioners convened at the DuPage Airport Authority Flight Center Building, 2700
International Drive, West Chicago, Illinois on Wednesday, May 6, 2015. Chairwoman LaMantia
called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. and a quorum was present for the meeting.

Commissioners Present: Chavez, LaMantia, Ledonne, Posch

Absent: DAA Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation
Facilities and Properties; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan
Barna, Procurement Manager; Pamela Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others in Attendance: Phil Luetkehans, Attorney; Kevin Cloutier, SheppardMullin; Mike Loftus,
DuPage County Resident; John Bullock, DuPage Aerospace.

Members of the Press: None

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Ordinance 2015-284; Enacting Revisions to the DuPage Airport Employee
Handbook.

Executive Director Bird explained that Staff has been working with HR Attorneys with the firm of
SheppardMullin and Kevin Cloutier of that firm is present to discuss the proposed revisions.
Attorney Cloutier stated that staff and counsel try to stay as consistent as possible with the
existing format of the Employee Handbook and making updates in accordance with State of
Illinois laws. He continued that there were no ambiguities in the handbook and the handbook is
as user friendly as possible.

Executive Director Bird stated that this employee handbook has been in place for 10 years since
2004 when he began assisting the Internal Policy and Compliance Committee with the rewriting
process; this was a one-year process to complete. He added there have been changes in laws
and some ambiguities identified during the past 10 years and staff has been working with
SheppardMullin to removes these ambiguities and add clarity to the Handbook.

Attorney Cloutier explained each of the recommended changes during a review of the redline
version of the Handbook as provided to the Committee. Discussion followed and the committee
made the following modifications:

(1) Page 88 - Reference is made to the DAA Ethics Commission. Clarification to be made
modifying this to say DuPage County Ethics Commission. This modification is to be made
in various parts of this section and should be changed as appropriate.

(2) DAA Employee Handbook revised date is shown as 2/25/15 and language is to be added
stating this date supersedes previous dates.

(3) Page 73 — provide the contact information for DAA General Counsel; to be utilized by
employee when filing a complaint when appropriate.

11



(4) Employees are to be trained on how to utilize the Employee Handbook and all changes in
the handbook are to be explained clearly to employees in these sessions.

Discussion continued on how often the Employee Handbook should be revisited and reviewed for
changes. Attorney Cloutier recommended that a review should take place no less that every two
years. Committee Chairman LaMantia recommended that a comprehensive review of the DAA
Employee Handbook take place every five (5) years. Discussion followed briefly.

Proposed Ordinance 2015-284; Revisions to the Employee Handbook.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Ordinance 2015-284; Revisions to the Employee Handbook subject to modifications being made
to the handbook as discussed. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and was
passed unanimously by roll call vote (4-0).

OTHER BUSINESS
None

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Posch to adjourn the Internal Policy and Compliance
Committee Meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Ledonne and was passed
unanimously by voice vote. The meeting adjourned at 3:59 p.m.

Gina LaMantia, Chair
Internal Policy and Compliance Committee

12



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, MAY 20, 2015

A meeting of the Finance, Budget and Audit Committee of the DuPage Airport Authority Board of
Commissioners was convened at the DuPage Flight Center, 2700 International Drive, West
Chicago, Illinois, First Floor Conference Room, on Wednesday, May 20, 2015. Committee
Chairman Huizenga called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m. and a quorum was present.

Commissioners Present: Donnelly, Huizenga, Ledonne, Posch, Wagner

Commissioners Absent. None

DuPage Airport Authority Staff Present:

Executive Director David Bird; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation Facilities and Properties; Patrick
Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan Barna, Procurement Manager;
Pamela Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others:
Jim Savio, Sikich; Mike Loftus, Resident.

OLD BUSINESS
None

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Patrick Hoard proceeded to review the Financial Statements:

Operating Revenues:

Airport Operations revenues are on budget for this month; just below 1%.
Flight Center Fuel Operations decreased 14% from the budgeted amount.
Prairie Landing Golf Club revenues on budget year-to-date.

Total Operating Revenues overall are down 9% actual versus budget.

Operating Expenses.
Each of the businesses are down. Margins across the Board are very good and considerably
ahead of where expected for this year.

Airport Operations expenses decreased 9% from budget.

Flight Center Fuel Operations decreased 29%.

Prairfe Landing Golf Clubis 6% below actual versus budget.
Total Operating Expenses decreased 20% actual versus budget.

Net Profit from Operations increased significantly from the amount budgeted; driven by sale of
land at the DuPage Business Center.

Total Non-Operating Revenues increased significantly from budget.

Total Non-Operating Expenses are flat.

Net profit from Non-Operations and Net Profit Excluding Depreciation both increased significantly
actual versus budget.

Capital Development Program:. Decreased significantly from budget but does not yet reflect
increased spending for new transient hangar construction.

Cash Ending Balance is nearly $17.153 milfion.

Discussion followed.



Presentation and Review of the Annual Financial Audit.

Mr. Hoard asked Mr. Savio to review the Annual Financial Audit Report. Mr. Savio thanked staff
for their assistance throughout the audit process. He advised that on November 13, 2014 a
planning meeting was held, and preliminary field work began on December 17, 2014. He
continued that final field work ended by February 23, 2015, a draft audit report provided on
March 18 and the final audit report presented on April 2, 2015. Mr. Savio reviewed the
highlights of the Financial Audit Report and stated that an unmodified opinion was issued which
is the highest opinion to be given in the audit process. Discussion followed.

Commissioner Huizenga asked the Committee to consider the possibility of recommending to the
Board approval of another abatement of the property tax levy. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Wagner to recommend for Board Approval that the
DuPage Airport Authority abate $500,000 in Fiscal Year 2016 for property taxes collected in 2015.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Ledonne and was unanimously passed by roll call
vote (5-0).

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Resolution 2015-1941; Authorizing the Execution of a Non Federal
Reimbursable Agreement between the Department of Transportation Federal Aviation
Administration and the DuPage Airport authority to Provide Airport Traffic Control
(ATC) Services at the DuPage Air Traffic Control Tower.

Approves an Agreement between the Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA”) and the DuPage
Airport Authority whereby the FAA will provide staffing of the DuPage Air Traffic Control Tower
from 10:00 PM to 6:00 AM for the period for October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016.

Total authorized cost of $477,898.37.

Mark Doles explained that in 1988 the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) pulled all funding for
staffing night time Air Traffic Control Towers across the nation and since that time the DuPage
Airport Authority has paid the FAA for staffing the tower during nighttime hours 10 p.m. to 6:00
a.m. He continued that this allows the Airport to be open and controlled and ensures the safety
of customers, tenants, staff and the surrounding communities. He added this also helps the
Airport Authority to attract and retain business. Mr. Doles advised this agreement with the FAA
allows the Airport Authority to again fund, for the Fiscal Year 2015-20186, staffing at the Air
Traffic Control Tower for night time hours. Discussion followed regarding the importance of
continuing this agreement with the FAA.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Wagner to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Resolution 2015-1941; Authorizing the Execution of a Non Federal Reimbursable Agreement
Between the Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration and the DuPage
Airport authority to Provide Airport Traffic Control (ATC) Services at the DuPage Air Traffic
Control Tower. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Ledonne and was passed
unanimously by roll call vote (5-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1942; Resolution for the Disposal/Destruction of Surplus
Personal Property.

Approves the disposition of surplus property by internet auction. Items include a 1991 John
Deere Tractor, 1995 Chevy Pickup Truck, and 2003 Chevy Van.

Dan Barna advised the Airport Authority has one piece of equipment and two vehicles to be
disposed by utilizing eBay. Discussion followed regarding the recent sales and amounts received
by utilizing this method of disposition for surplus property and equipment.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Donnelly to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Resolution 2015-1942; Resolution for the Disposal/Destruction of Surplus Personal Property.



The motion was seconded by Commissioner Posch and was passed unanimously by roll call
vote (5-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1943; Award of Contract to Excel Mechanical Services,
LLC. for Heat and A/C Unit Replacement at the Travel Express and American Flyers
Hangars.

Approves a Contract for replacement of two (2) A/C units at the Travel Express Hangar and four
(4) heat and A/C split system units at the American Flyers Hangar. Total authorized construction
cost of $54,444.50, which includes a 10% owner’s contingency.

Mr. Barna explained the air conditioning and heating systems are in need of replacement at the
Travel Express Hangar and the American Flyers Hangar. He reported that six bids were received,
however upon evaluation, the lowest bid did not meet specifications. The low, responsive,
responsible bidder was determined to be Excel Mechanical Services. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Posch to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Resolution 2015-1943; Award of Contract to Excel Mechanical Services, LLC. for Heat and A/C
Unit Replacement at the Travel Express and American Flyers Hangars. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Ledonne and was passed unanimously by roll call vote (5-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1945; Award of Contract to Gate Options for Replacement
of Three (3) Electric Gate Operators.

Approves a Contract for replacement of three (3) Hy-Security electric gate operators, drive rails
and loop detectors. Total authorized construction cost of $42,714, which includes a 5% owners
contingency.

Mr. Barna advised this project includes replacing three electro-hydraulic gate operators that are
unreliable due to extensive use and wear. He advised there were two bids received and Gate
Options was determined to be the low responsive and responsible bidder. Discussion continued
briefly.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to recommend Board approval of Proposed
Resolution 2015-1945; Award of Contract to Gate Options for Replacement of Three (3) Electric
Gate Operators. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Wagner and was passed
unanimously by roll call vote (5-0).

Other Business
None

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Posch to adjourn the Finance, Budget and Audit
Committee; the motion was seconded by Commissioner Ledonne and was passed unanimously
by voice vote. The meeting adjourned at 1:56 p.m.

Peter H. Huizenga, Chairman
Finance, Budget and Audit Committee

15



DuPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT, LEASING AND CUSTOMER FEES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, MAY 20, 2015

The meeting of the Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee of the DuPage
Airport Authority Board of Commissioners was convened at the DuPage Flight Center, 2700
International Drive, West Chicago, Illinois in the First Floor Conference Room on Wednesday,
May 20, 2015. Committee Chairman Wagner called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m. A
quorum was present for this meeting.

Commissioners Present. Chavez, Ledonne, Posch, Wagner,
Absent: None

DAA Staff Present: Executive Director David Bird; Mark Doles, Director of Aviation Facilities
and Properties; Patrick Hoard, Director of Finance and Prairie Landing Golf Club; Dan Barna,
Procurement Manager; Pamela Miller, Executive Assistant and Board Liaison.

Others: Phil Luetkehans, Schirott, Luetkehans and Garner, LLP; Michael Toth, JWI;
Michael Vonic, CH2M Hill; Mike Loftus, Resident.
Press: None

CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

NEW BUSINESS

Proposed Resolution 2015-1944; Authorizing the Execution of Change Order No. 1
with K-Plus Mechanical, Inc. for Fuel Farm Upgrades.

Approves a $125,908 Change Order for excavation and repair of failed underground secondary
containment fuel piping. Increases existing Contract from 303,955 to $429,863 total authorized
construction cost not-to-exceed $475,456.25, which includes a 15% owners contingency.

Mark Doles explained the fuel farm based on the Airport and located adjacent to the maintenance
building is in need of upgrades and rehabilitation; it is approximately 20 year old. He reviewed
the scope of this project and advised these upgrades would extend the life of the fuel farm
facility for an additional 20 to 25 years. He continued that after the start of the project and
upon additional inspection and testing, an unforeseen secondary containment issue was
determined to exist which requires mitigation to remain operational. He discussed the additional
costs involved, stating staff and Engineers all agree this work must be completed and the
contractor’s proposed pricing is fair and reasonable. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Chavez to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resolution 2015-1944; Authorizing the Execution of Change Order No. 1 with K-Plus Mechanical,
Inc. for Fuel Farm Upgrades. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Posch and was
unanimously passed by roll call vote (4-0).

Proposed Resolution 2015-1946; Ratification of the Executive Director’s Execution of
a Professional Services Agreement with Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. for
Civil Design, Storm Water and Wetland Consulting Services — Pond I Modification to
Provide PCBMPs at the DuPage Business Center.

Ratification of a Professional Services Agreement with Christopher Burke Engineering to provide
storm water and consulting services for the DuPage Business Center and the permitting of storm
water improvements for Pond I. The contract is being performed on a time and material basis



not to exceed $46,950, plus additional time and materials for consultations, meetings and
telephone conferences.

Attorney Luetkehans advised that work is necessary prior to the permitting and construction of
the DS Containers development at the DuPage Business Center and additional modifications are
required for Pond I.  He continued that Christopher B. Burke Engineering Ltd. (CBBL) provided
an agreement to perform the necessary engineering work for storm water modifications to Pond I
and reviewed the permitting process involved. Attorney Luetkehans stated that in order not to
delay the project, Executive Director Bird executed this agreement with CBBL prior to the Board
Meeting and now ratification is being requested. Discussion followed.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Ledonne to recommend Board approval for Proposed
Resolution 2015-1946; Ratification of the Executive Director’s Execution of a Professional Services
Agreement with Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. for Civil Design, Storm Water and
Wetland Consulting Services — Pond I Modification to provide PCBMPs at the DuPage Business
Center. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and was unanimously passed by
roll call vote (4-0).

LEASING AND CUSTOMER FEES

NEW BUSINESS

Presentation of Possible Modifications to the Development Plan for the Property
Located at 2505 Enterprise Circle in the DuPage Business Center.

Attorney Luetkehans advised that at the June Board Meeting, a proposed resolution will be
brought to the Board for approving modifications to the Development Plan for property located in
the Business Center at 2505 Enterprise Circle. He advised that staff and attorneys are reviewing
these plans now to assure compliance with Airport Authority standards and discussion followed
regarding this potential development.

RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
There was no Executive Session.

OTHER BUSINESS

Mark Doles provided an update on the new transient hangar construction project. He advised
that in the past the Airport Authority has utilized design build successfully to build most of the
existing hangars at the Airport. He added staff along with Engineering Consultants CH2M Hill,
put together bridging documents which were previously approved by the Board and a Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) was developed. With this RFQ process, three firms were selected to provide
proposals and in reviewing each of these proposals, it became clear that the special design
architectural features for the hangar were driving up the cost of this project more than
anticipated. Mr. Doles advised that in the final meeting with these firms, all were in the $11
million plus range for this construction with an anticipated completion date in 2016. He
reviewed the architectural features included in the RFQ and stated that staff will work with CH2M
Hill to simplify design features and to bring down costs to the $10 million range as was previously
anticipated. Discussion followed.

Patrick Hoard the reported that the Prairie Landing Golf Club Bunker Refinement project has been
completed. He continued that operations at the course are going well. He continued that a sink
hole was discovered to be developing on Hole #1 green and pricing for this project is being
determined and repair will be done as soon as possible. He added that a similar issue with a

17



sink hole was also discovered at Hole #4 which is located in the rough and will be budgeted for
repair in 2016. Discussion followed.

Commissioner Ledonne made a MOTION to adjourn the Capital Development, Leasing and
Customer Fees Committee Meeting; the motion was seconded by Commissioner Chavez and
was passed by unanimous voice vote. The committee meeting was adjourned at 2:29 p.m.

Daniel J. Wagner, Chairman
Capital Development, Leasing and Customer Fees Committee

18



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

5/31/2015

FINANCIALS
PRE-AUDIT
COMMISSIONERS



Board Summary

DuPage Airport Authority

YTD May 2015

YTD YTD Percent Change
Budget Actual Actual vs Budget
Beginning Cash Balance- Unrestricted 9,467,750 9,467,750
Beginning Cash Balance - Restricted 7,055,080 7,055,080
16,522,830 16,522,830
OPERATING REVENUES
Airport Operations 2,054,729 2,015,650 -2%
Flight Center Fuel Operations 5,149,388 4,499,783 -13%
Prairie Landing Golf Club 775,657 752,041 -3%
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 7,980,274 7,267,474 -9%
OPERATING EXPENSES
Airport Operations 2,774,357 2,495,299 -10%
Flight Center Fuel Operations 4,214,959 3,066,920 -27%
Prairie Landing Golf Club 848,500 791,951 -7%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,837,816 6,354,170 -19%
Net Profit from Opaerations 142,458 913,304 541%
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Miscellaneous Taxes 22,917 38,667 69%
Property Taxes/Abatements 2,083 5,319 155%
Federal & State Grants 0 493,063 0%
Investment Income 27,000 27,453 2%
Unrealized Gain/Loss from Investments 0 20,893 0%
Gain/{Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 12,500 1,407,966 11164%
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES 64,500 1,993,360 2990%
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Property Tax (DAA) 107,000 (3,268) -103%
Property Tax (PLGC) 154,000 101,314 -34%
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 261,000 98,046 -62%
Net Profit from Non-Operations (196,500) 1,895,314 1065%
Net Profit Excluding Depreciation (54,042) 2,808,618 5297%
Total YTD Revenues 8,044,774 9,260,834 15%
Total YTD Expenditures 8,098,816 6,452,216 -20%
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS 7,522,812 1,419,082 -81%
MAJOR MAINTENANCE 12,650 72,473 473%
FUTURE PROJECT EXPENSE 0 3,390 0%
Adjustment for Non-Cash Activities 0 (879,078)
|Cash Balance - Ending 8,933,326 16,957,425 90%|




DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Month of May 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Receivables
Property Taxes
Interest
Accounts Receivable
Notes Receivable TEA Current Portion
Notes Receivable TEA Long term Portion
Due To/From Prairie Landing Golf Club

Due To/From DuPage Bus. Park Owner Assoc.

Prepaid Expenses
Vehicle Fuel Inventory
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Other Assets
Total Other Assets

Capital Assets
Cost
Construction in Progress

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization
Total Capital Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

AIRPORT DuPAGE FLIGHT PRAIRIE LANDING
OPERATIONS CENTER GOLF CLUB TOTALS

10,913,363 6,079,976 (35,914) 16,957,425
5,997,289 5,997,289
19,573 s s 19,573
98,846 460,362 32,316 591,525
47,400 - - 47,400
126,837 E 126,837
963,217 963,217
30,000 - - 30,000
399,919 58,004 6,450 464,373
24,232 - - 24,232

- 108,930 119,012 227,942
18,620,676 6,707,272 121,864 25,449,812
308,728,877 894,015 2,881,946 312,504,838
15,215,709 - = 15,215,709
323,944,586 894,015 2,881,946 327,720,547
(171,217,606) (742,232) (2,713,465) (174,673,303)
152,726,980 151,783 168,481 153,047,244
171,347,656 6,859,055 290,345 178,497,056

21



DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Month of May 2015

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to/from DuPage Airport Authority
Deferred Income - Operations
Deferred Income Property Taxes
Deferred Income Land
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Security Deposits
Total Long-Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Net Assets
Investment in Capital Assets, January 1
Changes in Net Capital Assets
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted for Future Capital Assets, January 1
Changes in Restricted for Future Capital Assets
Net Restricted for Future Capital Assets

Designated for Future Capital Assets, January 1
Changes in Designated for Future Capital Assets
Net Designated for Future Capital Assets

Unrestricted Assets, January 1
Changes in Unrestricted Assets
Net Income (Loss)

Intrafund Transfers - Transfer from Tech Park

Net Unrestricted Assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

AIRPORT DuPAGE FLIGHT PRAIRIE LANDING
OPERATIONS CENTER GOLF CLUB TOTALS
188,484 188,649 50,990 428,122
481,677 88,092 548,120 1,117,889
- . 963,217 963,217
1,939,167 82,946 = 2,022,113
5,997,288 - 5,997,288
80,000 - = 80,000
8,686,616 359,687 1,562,326 10,608,629
102,086 196,087 298,172
102,086 - 156,087 298,172
8,788,701 359,687 1,758,413 10,906,801
154,355,418 159,551 207,574 154,722,543
(1,630,290) (7,768) (39,093) (1,677,151)
152,725,128 151,783 168,481 153,045,392
2,685,777 * 2,685,777
1,577,590 1,577,590
4,263,367 4,263,367
4,284,302 4,284,302
(590,310) (590,310)
3,693,992 = 3,693,992
2,415,529 4,914,722 {1,490,680) 5,839,571
643,010 7,768 39,093 689,871
(1,182,072) 1,425,096 (184,962) 58,062
1,876,467 6,347,585 (1,636,549) 6,587,504
162,558,954 6,499,368 (1,468,068) 167,590,255
171,347,656 6,859,055 290,345 178,497,056

22



DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

YTD May 2015
AIRPORT DuPAGE FLIGHT PRAIRIE LANDING
QOPERATIONS CENTER GOLF CLUB TOTALS
Revenues
Field Operations 669,172 0 o} 669,172
Building Operations 1,194,172 0 0 1,194,172
Flight Center Building 71,722 0 0 71,722
Administrative 80,583 0 0 80,583
Fuel and Oil Sales 0 4,336,519 0] 4,336,519
De-ice, Lav Service, Preheats, APU, Tows 0 48,588 0 48,588
Overnight Fees - Transient 0 8,265 0 8,265
Hangar Rental 0 83,746 0 83,746
Golf Operations 0 0 433,420 433,420
Food and Beverage o} 18,780 53,119 71,899
Kitty Hawk Deli 0 0 11,965 11,965
Banquet 0 0 232,077 232,077
Miscellaneous 0 3,886 21,460 25,347
Total Revenues 2,015,650 4,499,783 752,041 7,267,474
Cost of Sales
Field Operations 715,124 0 0 715,124
Building Operations 419,977 0 0 419,977
Flight Center Building 95,453 0 0 95,453
Shop Equipment 172,737 0 0 172,737
Fuel and Qil , 0 2,269,749 0 2,269,749
Maintenance o] 80,052 0 80,052
Credit Card Expense 0 56,673 12,108 68,781
Golf Course Maintenance 0 0 217,692 217,692
Golf Operations 0 0 79,525 79,525
Food and Beverage 0 51,520 99,563 151,083
Kitty Hawk - Deli 0 0 11,965 11,965
Banquet 0 0 140,951 140,951
Total Cost of Sales 1,403,291 2,457,994 561,804 4,423,088
Gross Profit/{Loss) 612,359 2,041,790 190,238 2,844,387
General and Administrative
Administration 834,324 601,313 230,148 1,665,784
Commissioners 40,030 0 Q 40,030
Business Development & Marketing 84,913 7,614 0 92,527
Accounting 132,741 0 0 132,741
Total General & Administrative 1,092,008 608,927 230,148 1,931,082
Operating Income (Loss) Before Depreciation (479,649) 1,432,863 (39,910) 913,304
& Principal Reductions
Non Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Taxes - Property 5,319 0 0 5,319
Taxes - Other 38,667 0 0 38,667
Taxes - Paid 3,268 o] (101,314) (98,046)
Federal & State Grants 493,063 0 o] 493,063
Investment Income 27,452 0 1 27,453
Unrealized Gain/Loss from Investments 20,893 0 0 20,893
Amortization (Expense) 0 0 0] 0
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 1,410,841 0 (2,875) 1,407,966
Other Revenue (Expenses) 0 0 0 0
Total Non Operating Revenues {Expenses) 1,999,502 0 (104,188) 1,895,314
Net Income (Loss) before adjustments 1,519,853 1,432,863 (144,098) 2,808,618
Depreciation 2,632,510 7,768 34,415 2,674,693
Major Maintenance Expense 66,024 0 6,448 72,473
Future Project Expense 3,390 Q 8] 3,390

|Net income (1,182,072) 1,425,096 (184,962) 58,062




|
05990T § (rv0l0e) § 1908 §  S89U8L S (5L00z3] § O19TIT_ S| |991686'0) | |9z9BSce S (59500z°€l § 19085 §  bOEEDS  § (b69'Tee] $ omo'mit  § {s507)/5Wwoou) 13N
06E'E 6 - S OBEE S . s - s - s B S OBE'E S - $ OBEE $ - g - g = 3 51507 Sunaaurdug
ltavs'zz) ¢ 61¥'00T  $ E€LVTL s {095s) $ 095's S s 0sZ'TIE $ £28'6S $ 0s9'TT $ v $ . 5 - $ - $ saueusUlEpy Jofepy
SrTeroc & Ti00iod § Sieeer §  SerolZ 6 wiswo9] § 09T 5| |964z91) §| |BE@IZEE § (S1648TE) § beeeel S bOEE06 S (b69T6L) $ OTTIL ¢ uoneaidaq saye (5507)/3Woou) 13N
logs‘1¢E) S €/Z'9v0'c $ €69'/97 $  (89U'SL)  § LL0TT9 $ 606'SES S ver1zs's S| llBerssy) ¢ esg'seT'e $ €69 vL9T ¢ (s98'06) & SLL'979  $ 606'SES S uoneaidag
99E'7L9'T § TST9ET  § L19'908'Z § o600 5 lLevEsl  § e1s'4v9 S BLE'EVR'S § eso'zege $ levo'vS) 6 £19808'F § 6Ep'ZI8  § (616'M9T) § 615749 S uonenadag 210429 (ss01)/awodu) 19N
26£'969‘T $ (TvL's€)  $ £59'9S9'T § 09.'68¢  $ (0T8'S0Z) § OS6'E8T 000°£85's  $ 1sT'esg’T § (oos'96T)  §  ss9eser § osv'eer  § loos'swZ) S OSE'ERT  § (sa5uadx3)/sanuansy FunessdQ-uon 1210
056'96€'T § 9T0'TT $ 996'Lov'T & 8ze & (ve) $ w6 s 000°0€ $ 99t'SeE'T §  005ZT $ 996'L0v'T 5 {902°7) $ 0057 $ 6T s 51955y Paxt4 JO 3|ES UO UIED
F 5 G - 2 5. $ - $ d 5 . 5 - § - $ . 5 - 5 - s (esusdx3) uvoieziowy
lesLvs) 6 zs9'st § €680 $  (e09'p2) & 868%2 S 687°S 5 d 5 £68'02 $ - 5 £68'07 $ 687°S 5 - S 687'S s SIUBLIISBAU| LU0 550T/UIRD PBZI[EaIUN
(sgz'sel & (eL'06 $ wev'iz 4 {zov'z) 4§ 656 § L8177 s 000'EY s [434 § 000'iT § zsv'Lz $ 18T § 0007 S 812 s 3WOIU| JUBWIISBAL|
or'vse § - S L0V'vST % 0P § - N A TN . 5 L0V'YST 6 - § Lov'vST $ or'vse 5 - $ [0F'vST & SIUEID) 21835 P 123paY
qz0'tST  § (1L0'ssz) § (9po'8E) & 5z0'tsT % (TL0'ssz) ¢ (ovo'BE) & (oo0'zzsy % vs6'29T & (000'197) & (9v0'BE) S 756791 3 (000°792) ¢ (9v0'86) & sasuadx3 xe) Auadold
0909 5 ST6'LE 5 sse'th  § 9T0'S S €086 $ 6I8VT s 0009509 & 586'8T § 000'sZ 5 sse'sy $ 6186 5 000'S $ 6I8YT % snusasy xe] 1ayiQ pue Auadolg
(SISNIAX3}/SINNIAIY DNILYYIJO-NON
896'5/6 $ €66'SLT ¢ 096'TST'T § eEU'TIE & ELE'RST 6 Ois'sar S 86957  $ ZOS'600'T $ BSHIPT S 096 IST'T § 5868LE S 18518 BT T {5507)/3wodu) Sunessdp
|lsog’sk) § 6S0‘Z66'T & TGU'EWE'T $ {25's S BO9E'VEE 5 FEEEBE S B0E'9LT'S  $ logz'ost) $ Dev'eLo'z S TETEME'T §  (09'9zl  § SE9'9TY  § WER'SEE $150) ¥'39 (€101
SELZ S ZeL90s § (6809 S [losr') S 669801 & BIZ90T 3 S¥E'7Z9T S [Sso'vE) S T862F@ S (26809 §  (BELOZ) & ove9El 5 BIZ9OT 3§ 121u=) 1yBit4 a8ednq
95e'9 $ ooe'sec  $ 9szTve  §  (TEETT)  $ sBE'9S $ vsO'sy $ sov'ozes  $| |lze9's) $ see'sb  § 9szTrr  § l9e@s) $ 688'ES $ vso'sy $ g1 4109 Suipuet suely
(61t'LS) $ [Tv'spl'T ¢ 800T60'T § 8EE'6T $ pgz’elz  $ €T98ET  $ S6v'EEE'T S (e6v'g88) ¢ 7T0S'08T'T § 200760T § £087 ¢ 0z8'sEz  $ €79'8€T  § suonerado podiy
INMLYYISINIAQY ONY TYHINID
00T'ZZ6 6 TGOB9T'Z & IST'SG0'E 5  EZ491E  § 1Ip/9ss S vorsss S| |989'zev’s S| |ecz6r8  § 648'S1ZT § IST'SE0'E § 877'7S€  $ 9€Z'10S  $ bIP'ES8 S (s501)/11)01 55019
|(gze'osz't) ¢ 80£'169's $ 086'0tv'y $  (095°8ET) ¢ /96'ESI'T § 90V'PIOT § €9T's86'cT $| [larv'ese’t) ¢ see'vos’s § oes'olv'y §  (Ter'ISz) § (LEE'SO'T § 9OWPIOT § $9|es §0 1507 |E10L
[Eoc'zett) & ISL'OV3'E § weEdsStE 5  (TEU'vET) § 525094 S WBE'XIS  § otLsvv's 5| (IPBEEITT) § BL6TLSE S weELSPT S (SPZ'EST) S BE9WEL 5 PEE'®IS  § 12097 14314 38edng
957'vL $ eev'sct S seaEYS  § 0L6'eS $ gg6'9vT  $ €0600T S 8sTTI6'T $| |[lesg'sp) ¢ zog'ses ¢ se9ers  $  {Ep9IT) ¢ sysTiz ¢ cos00z qn|3 4105 Suipue] stiesy
(tz8'1L1)  § ZTT'SL5'T § T6Z'sor'T § T09'T $ 60S'skz  $ OTULbT S 967’79’ % (s35'061) § SS8'€6ST 5 TBZEORT S {tvs18) $ ps9'szE 5 OITivT S suoiiesadp podiry
$31VS 30 1503
lezz’ese) § 6SEGSR'L & TET'90SC § EOU'RLT & IDL'GBY'T S O0/8/98'T § 0s8’LTr'6T §| |lEvT'vev) & ©LTOBE'L S TET'90S'L § L6L°001  § EL0'L9L'T $ QuBL98TT § sanusAay |e10)
lsoz'soL) 6 zee'vOZ'S S E€8L'66P'P 5 (GEBOE) S LZVIROT § EBSOSE S eLE'0pTTT §| [(soT'0S8] § sEEsRI's § €8/68¥v §  (6E0'SE) S [79'SE0TT S 6BS0SE  § 183U33 Y814 38egng
’, ’, . _
[98'9VT  $ v9's09  § TvO'TSL  $ L8495 TITw9T S €80'TEE S ors'vea’z 5| |leta'ez) ¢ £s9'ses s Tvo'zsL S (vev'er)  § LL§'T9E S £BO'ZEE $ anpd 4109 Sulpue] ainely
$19's07  $ Z69'EYOE $ 9DE'WSIZ § TETT0Z  § B890'KBE 6 861'58S & L062V9'Y & LL5'66T  § 6TL'YS0'T & 9Q0E'WST'T & QEE'sTZ  $ 898°69E & 861585  § suonesadp vodiry
adueEA #10T ST0Z duBLEA $10¢ ST0Z 193png SouelLen 1wldpng Eny EEIT) 13dpng Jen1oy SINNIATYH
aLs [ |enuuy §10Z aLA [T
ST0Z/TE/S Bupu3 yuow 3y 1oy
SISNIINI ONY SINNAATY 40 INIWILYLS
Ayaoyiny yiodiry aSednq |elog

24



{ss01)/3wodu) yoN
51507 SulissuiBug
JdueUIUIRA Jofely

uonenidaq 1aYe (ssoq)/2wodu) 19N
uonersidag

uonenaidaq 310j3q {ss07)/3wodu] 13N

{sasuadx3)/sonuanay Junesadg-uoN 101

51855y PaXI4 JO 9|€S U Uleg

(asusadx3) uonezipowy

SIUSIWISSAU| WOJ) SS0T/UIBD) PSzi|ealun

3WODU) JUBWISBAU|

SjuelD) 2)eIS 1Y |BIApa4

sasuadx] xe| Alledosy

anusAsy xe | J2y10 pue Auadoid
(SISNIAXIN/SINNIATY ONILTYIJO-NON|

{ss07)/swoduy Sunesadp

§150) ¥R9 |30}
3ununosay
Bunayielp/ A3 ssauIsng
sJauotssiwwor
SAIIRJISIUIWLPY
JALVHISININGY NV T7HINID|

(sso1)/mo1g ss019

s3eS J0 150) |BI0]
suonesado ‘dinb3 doyg
JE TR UL=TTH]
suolesadq Suip|ing
suones2do pial4
$31VS 40 1S0D

$3nU3ARY [210]
131u93 3yd14
suonelsadp Buipjing
suonesado plai4
SAlRASILIWPY
SINNIATY

Sreeivz § (0z08s9€) § leL0zer] §  €90a6s 5 le19see) 6 (oseert) S| |(sss'ozo'es) G0L'0L0Z § \IBLZS8E) § (c£0Z8T'1) §  988bol  § (dez80el § [oseert]
06EE S - $ DBEE B . Bt = 5w 3 03 06E'E s - $ OGE'S 3 . § = [ [3
lgzz18)  § C08'L6 $ beo'e9 s (860°G) $ 860'S $ - $ 001'88T% $70'99 $ W $ 7099 $ - g - g . $
09s'cvb'z $ (812°095°8) § (BS9ZTIT) § 991’065 $ (sTa'eez) § (ose'svr)  §| |lsst'Beb’ES) YZTOvLZ § (18LZS8E) & (859°CiLT) § agg'var  § (9ez's06) S (0SE'evi) §
(oze'vse) § LE8'986'7 $ OISTEIT $ (Sov'Ts) ¢ oel'eeS S S8L'(ZS S 895'LTY'L S L.mwﬂ,mms $ £59'060°c $ 015'7€9C § (ope'06)  $ T€T'819 & SBLLZS  $
pEL'E60'T $ (TIBE'ELS) § ES6IST § 19/'81S  $ {SZE'PET) $ Sev'vBE  §| |ETT'6L6'ES 186'182'Z § (92T'79L) § ESR'SIST $ ops'ez9 S [so1'06E) § SEMPRE §
9E0'Z68T § 99P'ZOT  § Z05'666T $ 9zz'fes  § loog'ss)  § 9zo'ezs  §|  |000'Se8'sS z00'teo'z $ loos'z)  § wosses’t § ozm'sr9  § loos'sel  § groeEs ¢
878'60v'T $ €T0°T $ Tr8OIY'T % vE 5 (€ $ - $ 000'0E $ TYE'S6E'T ¢ 0057 $ TP8OTPT § (0057 $ 005T g $
- s - $ * s c % * S - S E $ " S $ - 5 v s - s - $
(6sL'pS) ¢ TS9'sL $ ee80z §  (609'vZ) & 8686 $ 682'S $ E $ £68'07 § - $ £68°0C H 682G s - S 687's $
(cgz'es) § LEL'06 § TSPLeT s (ov'2) $ 656 $ 18T H 000'E $ 474 $ 000°4Z $ zev'ez $ 8T8 $ 000 S /81L $
€906 S - $ £90'c6r & €90't6y & - $ €906t . $ €906y S - $ e£90'z6r & €90's6Y - $ €90'E6y  §
671901  § (198°20T) & 897’ 3 671901  § (198'20T) 5 892 S fooo'v1Z) S 892011 ¢ (000'£0T) ¢ 897’z $ 897’011 ¢ (000'£0T) & 89Z'E $
0909 $ STE'LE $ S86'ER $ 910's $ <086 $ 18T S 000'9€0'9 $ 586'ST $ 000'ST $ 66ty § 618'6 $ 000's § 61T $
1061 § (vgs9) § Gvo6ly) ¢ [5oves] & (9¢L08) 5 Neleen) §| |iZss'si61s) 6L6'6EC 5 [8Z9'6TL) S [6ta'sit]  $ vip'ss  § [s09've1) § [reT’eer)
[6Tv'2S) ¢ fzv'epT'T § BOO'Z60'T § BEE'ST $ vBZelz 5 Ez9'sE  §| [eev'ees’Ts lesr'sg) § TOSOBI'T $ BOO'ZEO'T S £08'C S OIE'SEZ  § ET9BEL S
{s11'ee) S 6S8T/T  § TIpLzer  $  [E19'%4T) & wisee s 1B (3 286°LZE S L08'% $ PEEUIT S Ipi‘ter 6§ (1Z9'E) § zEs'st S T2 H
YOT'SE $ 608'6% $ £T6'78 $ 8e8'T $ OET'ET $ 896'%T $ 1107202 § 979'C 5 18278 $ E16'r8 S (peET) $ z9e9T S 896'FT $
6751 $ TOS'SE $ o0g0or  $ 795 S veSL $ 9pL'8 $ sge’e0r | (le62Ed § Leeer $ 0£0°0b s  (oes) $ s99'g $ orT'R $
(be6'bS) 5 857’688 § brEWER  $ TSSVE $ Lb0'6ST  $ 8eS'EET vis'e6z'c $| [loe'zel  § ese’ote § preE'rEs S REE'S $ 09z's8T 5 865'teT S
8LL'BET  $ TBSELF ¢ 6SETT9 § [tZt'eE)  § BSS'8ET  § EM'SE ] [r9'c1oTs 9B¥'1ST  § PiF09Y  § BSEZT9  § L1288 $ StE'ty § 2er'es s
(Teg't4r) § zrT'ses'T § TETEOMT § 109'T $ 60S'Sz  § OIT'4vZ  $ 962'529°€S [lsas'oe1] 6 SSE'ERS'T §  [vws'ts)l  § pS9'gEE § oIk S
lapz'orl S E8RZIZ 5 LELTT S S65°E $ TrY'vT S 98087 $ 12895y S| |lzszzz) 5 686'MST s [rersl 3 {9T'EE § SE0'RI S
(Lyv'0T) ¢ 006'S0T  § €5¥'SE S wit's $ 520’97 S 69r'1Z N vev'pez S| |leso'zel  $ 8os'czl S (009°T) $ 690'€7 $ 69Y'1Z $
(60T'VST) $ S80'vLS  $ 4661y S (9T0%6E)  § S99ETT  $ 6v9'bL $ viszrrT §| fltee'sdd s s06'96v $  (00ETT)  § eve'se S 6Y9'WL $
18676 $ prl'zee  $ vzl'sTL $ LL5°T€ $ 6LE'TE $ 9s6'77T § erteet s | |leress) s osvvic S (pT9'E9)  § e9v'esT  § 9s6TZT S
[evo'eel & ze9'BMO'T § 0S9'ST0'Z §  (9zs'z€) ¢ 890'vBE  § wwSovE  ¢| |L08'zvovS l6e0'6E)  § 62.'vS0'z 5 059'510°7 § (92€'er) ¢ B9E'GIE 6 ZTHSUME  §
lesp’et)  § &12%68 S T B (96T'eT)  § Ze£TC S OFT'8 S cgg'ecr 5| [lovel S E9E'ZL $ e s lsee'el $ ELYPT § 9er's s
(ess'7z) ¢ 9T6'9TT'T § TI'WELT §  (96S'ET) S SI6'TST  § eleeer  $ goz'sss’s $| |leso'evl S T9zZ'cETT § wTUWELT S5 (856') $ Liz'sbz § 6IE6ET S
(ce0'z1)  § (0T'T89 $ 71699 & {e1e'6) $ 78b'86 $ 89168 S ELT'89E'T $ (og2'st) ¢ 00988 § 2LT'598 S (0ET'6) $ 867'86 4 89168 3
172’61 S TE'TY9 $ £8508 $ (T2y'T) 5§ BEETT 5 BI6'6 § PRSTVT S 08b'1¢ S £01'65 S £85°08 s (z05'1) $ 18’1l $ 816 S
asuelen ¥102 S10Z dIUBLIEA [ S10Z 198png asueuEp 128png |ENLY ajuenep 1a8png [Enyy
aLA Yuo |enuuy 6107 alA Yluo
S10Z/YE/S Buipu3 yiuow ayy 104
SISNIAX3I ANV SINNIATY 40 ENSWILYLS
uoljensiujwpy pue yodiy

25



SISNIINI ONY SINNIATY J0 LNINILVIS
121ua) 3114 38edng

0Ly 5 bvLL'PS6  $  960°SZY'T ¢ 96FS0T  § BZSOLT S vIvMEZ  § 990507 $ vEBLGY  $ TOTIZE 5 9RD'sZMT § vE6'E6E S O060'E8T  § vIVALT S (ss07)/awoou) 19N
(t19) $ Z8E® $ 89L'L s {ez) $ 9.9 $ ¥SST s Th9'sT $ 0 $ 89L°t $ 89L'L $ 0 $ ps5T $ ¥SST $ uopesidag
1069y § 9ST'€9%6 $ E€98'CEVT $ LG0T 5 vOT'UT  § Le'lE $ 8TE'690C $ PEB'L6F  § GI6'VEE 5 EIRZEMT § PEG'E6E 5 tWO'WBL S L6l § uoneasdag 210434 (s501)/3wodu| 19y
(z59°s) $ Ts9's $ - $ E - Ya s = $ = $ . S - s - H . § - § = S 51955y pax!4 JO 3es uo uien
6SE'SLY  § YOS'LS6 5 E9BTEV'T ¢ ELLSOT  § HOTRLT 6 ME'ME S 81£'690°C § vEE'LGY 5 BIG'PEE S E9RIEYT § VEG'ER § PRO'PET S LGLLE S [ss01)/awodu) 3unersdp
§61°Z ¢ zes'909 $ (76’809 § (08v'T) $ 669'80T S 8IZ'90T  $ svE'zzo'r 3| |lsso'vE) ¢ TeeTye S £2E6'R09  $  (8zL'0Z)  $ 9ve’9TT  $ 8IZ'P0T S IAILVYLSININGY ONY TvYINID
YSSIIb S 9ECYI9ST § 06LThOT §  E6CEOT S E0608C § S6TWEE  $| |€99169t S| |649ESr 5 OleLeST § D6LTe0T 5 90TEL 685'01€ 5 SHIPRE  § {ss01)/3y014 ss0un
[€9LZ80°T) ¢ ZSLOVO'E § b66'4Se ¢ (IET'p6I] § S2S’09L  § vEE'9IS  § ots'syv's 5| |wBE'ETT'T) § BL6TLSE § vesssp'r §  (swe'ssT) § BEYMEL S WEE'99S  § $3Je$ 30 1507 [e10),
(sga'v) S LEL'vE $ 78R 3 (s0¢) S 989'al $ Z86'ST 3 720'702 s (rzt'e) S5 SLTvE S Ts0'08 3 {esgl S S8esel 5 Z86'sT [ soueUMUIRYY
SE9'E $ 988ty $ 02518 5 9€L S vz6'0l $ 099'TT S 000'00T  § v58'6 S £99'Tr § 0zs'1s % LZEE § gg£8 $ 09911 $ $50D - pocy
(ogz'zt)  $ 206'89 S €£9'9S s (92£'s) $ €911 S (8ETT S 000'99T & | (lverET) $ /9169 § €49'95 s (9v%27) 5 E€8El & LBETT S asuadx3 psed ypaiy
(685'21)  § 6841 S S0g < - s - $ - S 000'sZ s (zrt'o1]l ¢ /1v0T § SOE 4 {€80'7) S £80°C 5 - S $pooD J0 1507 991 3g
(P6R'TST'T) § SEETTVE § bhb'692T §  (£8€'88T) & 2SL'STL & §9E'izs $ g89'ss6’.  §| [(8ot'eso't) $ 7Ss'99e’e ¢ wry'e9T'Z §  (8B1'9ST) & £95'€89  § G9ELTS S $3JeS 40 150D |!Q pue fany
$31VS 40 150D
l6oT's0c) $ e66'v0T'S § EBL'GGY'P 6 (6E8'06)  $ LZYTHO'T $ 685056  $ ereovter S| |lsor'ose) S eswerT’s § EBL'BEY'y §  [GED'SR) & AZ9'GED'T § 685086 S anuanay [e10L
(53] S BI6E S 9ER'E B 91e S Tve S 856 S 005'6 s| |k S 856 $ 988'E B 991 S 6L § 856 ¢ | enuaasy soueusiuteiy/eseanAusy pliply UON
817y $ 79sYT $ 08L'8T S v89 S 9l6’t 5 6657 S We'LE s €97t $ LIG'ST S 08L'81 s 96%'T S E0T's 4 6657 S Sups1e) yesany
SIS'ET § eL0sE $ 8898y $ 8€9 $ 0Lp'T % 8017 $ 005'8Y s 08£'87 $ 8o0z'og $ 8ss8y  §  (pE6T) § o'y § 801 $ 18430 801A185 BUIT
(16€'824) & 0T6'P90'S $ 6IG'9EE'r S (££9'26) & ®BEL'EZO'T § TOL'9Z6 S 7eT'Z281T 5| |leostol) ¢ TTi8e0’s § 6TS9EE'Y & (€/1°¢8)  § vLZ'ETO'T § 10T'9C6 S s3|es IO pue [2ng
1591 $ 8099 S S92'8 $ 12 CTANS § Leee $ 000'5Z sl |zst'd) $ LTP0T $ soz® s vIET § £807 5 Lece $ s34 IYBIUIBAQ 1§ sumoqQ a1 dwey
9e8E S 016%6L $ 9pL'es $ 068y S 9ES'8 § 9Tv'ET S 0008YT & 6£0°7T $ 19979 S 9vL'E8 s 7601 S eeeTT § 9Tv'er S sjeyusy JaBuey
SINNIATY
duenen ¥102 ST0Z soueLeA v102 ST0Z 123png Souepen 128png leny aIueuep 128png ey
QLA yuopy lenuuy STOZ aLA Yiuow
ST0Z/TE /5 BuIpua YIuop eyl 104

26



(sso1)/3wodu| 19N

aoueusIUIR JolRIA
uoneaidag

uonenaidaq 21043q [5507)/swodu| 18N

51355y paxl4 JO 3(eS UO uley

2WOdU| JUBUNSBAU|

sasuadx3 xe| Aliadold
{S3ISNIAX3}/SINNIAIY ONILYHIJO-NON

(s507)/2woduy Sunesadp
JALLVYISININGY ANV TYY3INTD
{ss01)/14014 ss019

$9)e6 40 1507 210
24D ymeH Al - 006d
s3uINQ J10O - 00Ld
SUBA3 B1BALd - 009d
s3UIPPEM - 00Sd
28eJanag pue pood - 00td
suonEIBdO 4109 - 00Ed
2OURUDUIRIA JIOD) - 00Zd

$37vS 40 1500

BNU3AY |e10]
2480 dyMmeH AL - 006d
s3UNNE 409 - 00Zd
SIUBAT 31eALd - 009d
SBUIPP3MA - 0054
28e.1aAag pue pood - 00td
suonesado J109 - 00gd
UOI1BRNSIUILIPY 4109 - 00Td

S3NN3IAFH

Teeesr & Iterz0fl § leoetst) &  szao8 & leseton) & (wovvz)  §| [z8zETvS) Te668 S (aropiZ] S lz96wB1) §  S8vrb S Ievosd) & (vawid S
7e8'e $ 9197 $ 8vv'9 s (g9n) $ €9t g - $ 0s1'eeTS (zoz'a) § 089°CT S BYY'9 S . $ - $ - $
(6£9'9T)  § ¥S0'1S S STY'vE $  {ov9'e) $ T1Z'01 $ 1489 $ §80'58% (eEe't) $ Tsp'se $ STY'wE (4] $ 060'L $ 159 $
Szv'60T  § (ces'ese)  § (860%0T) S gzv'9l  § lote'te) s (e68%T)  §| |(€so'sozs) svr'zs  § (evR'oze) S (ee0'sbT) S oGt § (8885) S leesen) &
(922'L) S TSE'Y $ (5¢87) $ v6e 5 - 5 v6e s . S (5£8'7) S - $ (5£87) S v6Z g - S v6Z H
0 $ T $ T $ . S0 50 S - S 1 $ - § 1T s 0 $r $ 0 H]
968°05 $ (otz'zst)  § (v1eTOT) 968'05 § fotz’zst) ¢ (vie'tor) (000'8OES) 98925 $ (000%sT) § (pI€T0T) ¢ 98925 $ {ooo'vST)  $ (pieTOT) €
65759 $ (v99'sor) S (ot6'68) § ZEL'ST 5 6809 5 LZT98 LY6'T0T  $ EE6'ZE § levezZl 5 lo166e) §  (st0'6) § TPI'SE 5 [T'es H
95g'9 ¢ o06'ser  § 9sz'eve ¢ (TeeTT)  $ 98€'9S $ vS0'sy $ 59v'079% (z89') $ see'sbz  § 9szTvr  § (9£9's) $ 688'€S S pso'st S
TIT'2L S SECOET  $ ovEToT S T06'€T $ 6LTLTT % OST'TEL  $ el S 152'5¢ § SEDHLT  § s tsge1) % zeo6er  § OBUIEL  §
9sz'vt  § GEVSIk 5 S69YS 5 0L6°€S  § EEE'OPT  $ €06'00C  § gsT'TI6T $| [leom'sy) § z9s'@es & se9rs  § [ep9'ril  § sevs'Tie § E0B'ODE §
levy'T) S BOP'El $ S96'TT B lLot) 5 ¥IsT S LO¥E H 00t'2€ s] [ses'm) S 00S'ET S 59671 3 (e62) $ o' B S
786 S 61T § 10Tt 3 29 § 8T $ 0167 $ sze'ee & |leetl $ §er'e § Tot'S s (s1€'T) FR a4 $ 016'T $
(181°€) 5§ 199'2Z & 1LYV s {reg'T) § IIT'S S LTt s 0070t s £19'6 $ 86L'YT § YT s {r8e'T) S TI9Y 43 $
0Tt'eE S 0/6%6L 5 O08E’EIl 5 11281 § 0BE'TT $ T65'6E s e1g7ze §| |lezv'tz) ¢ sosber  § 08e'€IT  §  (LSL'01) & 8¥EDS $ 165'6E $
TrT'9T $ TZr'e8 $ £9566  § 889'TT § 8S'ST S 02l s sta'z9e  §| |lset'et) s sec'eTT § €956 & {Zsh) § Tl S 0LT'LE $
(0058} 4§ 570°88 S szs'eL 4 195'S S 1¥9°0 S e0z'oe $ 8IT’0TE & (zz9't) S LbT'L8 § sTs'sL s 'z § 950°vE $ €o0C'oe S
gvy8'9s  § vpe'osT 5 7691z § orr'0T § 958'6S $ 96708 § (82v5e 5| |lese®rl  § spe'tez 4 Tevtiz & [437 $ 886, $ 96208 $
{9E'3VT  § WO'S09 § TvOESL § 14819 $ Trd'v9r  $ €80°CEE § orsve9'c 5| [loro'ezl ¢ esvsee ¢ meo'zSe 6 (wee'sZ] 6 LIST9E S EBO'ZEE S
Tept'T) S BOMEl § S96'LT s {co1) %4 S vt S 00v'Z€ 51 [fses) $ 0OS'El 5 S96'1T s (e62l S 00L2 S K B
£79's S vor'L $ (BO'ET [ 8Se'E § 6559 S L16'6 s €09'20T % LE€T $ 0s'01 § L80'¢T s (ec8) $ 0sL°0T S 1166 S
(16v'21)  § €£9'99 $ 18TPS 5 {v98) § zzE9l $ 8sL'ST 5 [99'EET 4§ vLE'OT $ 08y 5 18T7s & (eTEM) 5 L07T % 85/'sT $
TS0'TET 5 (SL'€E S 608%9T S 75209 S zov'se $ £59'88 s oos'20s  §| |l1sa'ez) s oo0s'sel  § 608791 & (£v8'ZT)  § 005’101  § €59's8 $
88 § TL2TS $ 6ITES  § ot § 0£TLE $ owee H ooo'egz & |lrest) $ 001'sS § eITc s 060'T § 0S9'9€ 5 opLg $
755t § 898'sck  § OZY'EEy & 196y § S08TLT  $ 99191  § o00'08s'T 5| floez'sz) ¢ o0s9'sst  § ozv'ser  §  (pEL'9T)  § O0ETET  § 991'9LT  $
£27'ST $ €EC'9 $ 091 3 79 S O0BET S Trr'l 3 005’2 5 011'st $ 05E's § 09%'1C 5 [44] $ 009 S Ihr't ]
dueLep 102 STOZ Jduelep 102 ST0Z ummﬁ_._m oIUBLEA »ﬂu—q-ﬂ |en1dy dluelep MHMﬁ_._Q |enidy
ath Yiuow fenuuy ST0Z QLA Jauop
ST02/1£/S Suipu3 \UOW By) 104
SISNIAXI ANV SINNIAIY 40 LNINILYIS
qn) yjoo Buipue avield

27



Wd LEZL §102/6/9 =
(9]
%00°001 %0826 %L0°Z %150 %e9'¥ %00°0 [e10] JO Juadiad
06°¢26°081 S+'206°L91 S6°SY.'S SLSL6 51'65¢'8 - :[ejoL Hoday
%820 00°00S - 00°00S - - - "ONI ONIMOOTd NOISIOINd 201dd-v
%621 020€€'2 = 02'0€€C - E = TTIAYYH AAN3IH LOHYHY
%860 00'9L2'L 00'vvy 00°v¥¥ 00'v¥y 00'b¥¥ - MNO0H-HIYNVYIN AQNTM COMYIN-Y
%¥0°) 00288'| SLLLY SL\V.Y 7 WA4 SLLLy - 071 SONIATOH F0dNOS3IY LOH3YvY
%¥9'6 00'¥ib'LL 00'000'01 = E 00 Ph¥'L b "ONI ‘NOILVIAY HSY LOVSH-Y
%..°98 0.'986'9G1 0.'986'951 e ¥ £ |2 NOILVYIAVY SSFHdXT TIAVHL L0Y3L-y
1ejor €101 anpiaAQ sAeq anp1aAQ skeq aNpIsAQ sAeq anNpIdAQ sAeq G1/60/90 SUWIeN JoWoIsny "ON JoWo)sny
0% +16 060119 09031 LE 112 1 2 ©wauny

} Jo | abed

anq ised sAeq 09 J9A0
Hoday Bbuiby a|qeAlassy sjunosdy

ALRIOHINY
14041y 3DvdN(]
P =



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: DuPage Airport Authority
Board of Commissioners

FROM: Patrick Hoard P"}/

Director of Einance

THROUGH: David Bird
Executive Direttor
RE: Proposed Ordinance 2015-285; 2015-2016 Prevailing Rate of Wages
DATE: June 15, 2015
SUMMARY:

The State of Illinois has enacted “An Act regulating wages of laborers, mechanics and other
workers employed in any public works by the State, county, city or any public body or any
political subdivision or by any one under contract for public works,” approved June 26, 1941,
codified as amended, 820 ILCS 130/1. The Act requires the DuPage Airport Authority, an Illinois
Special District, DuPage County, Illinois to investigate and ascertain the prevailing rate of wages
as defined in said Act for laborers, mechanics and other workers in the locality of DuPage County
employed in performing construction of public works, for DuPage Airport Authority.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:

No previous Committee or Board action has been taken for this Ordinance.
The Prevailing Rate of Wages Ordinance is adopted annually by the Board.

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:
No revenue or funding implications have been identified at this time.

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:
N/A

LEGAL REVIEW:
N/A

ATTACHMENTS:
Proposed Ordinance 2015-285; 2015-2016 Prevailing Rate of Wages.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommendation that the Board adopt Ordinance 2015-285; 2015-2016 Prevailing Rate of
Wages.

1 29



ORDINANCE 2015-285

2015-2016 Prevailing Rate of Wages

WHEREAS, the State of lllinois has enacted “An Act regulating wags of laborers,
mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by the State, county, city or any
public body or any political subdivision or by any one under contract for public works,”
approved June 26, 1941, codified as amended, 820 ILCS 130/1 et seq. (1993), formerly Ill, Rev.
Stat., Ch. 48, par. 39s-1 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the aforesaid Act requires that the DuPage Airport Authority, an lllinois
Special District, DuPage County, investigate and ascertain the prevailing rate of wages as
defined in said Act for laborers, mechanics and other workers in the locality of DuPage County
employed in performing construction of public works, for DuPage Airport Authority.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY:

SECTION 1: To the extent and as required by “An Act regulating wages of laborers,
mechanics and other workers employed in any public works by State, county, city or any public
body or any political subdivision or by any one under contract for public works,” approved June
26, 1941, as amended, the general prevailing rate of wages is this locality for laborers,
mechanics and other workers engaged in construction of public works coming under the
jurisdiction of DuPage Airport Authority is hereby ascertained to be the same as the prevailing
rate of wages for construction work in DuPage County area as determined by the Department
of Labor of the State of lllinois as of June of the current year a copy of that determination being
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. As required by said Act, any and all
revisions of the prevailing rate of wages by the Department of Labor of the State of Illinois shall
supersede the Department’s June determination and apply to any and all public works
construction undertaken by the DuPage Airport Authority. The definition of any terms
appearing in this Ordinance which are also used in the aforesaid Act shall be the same as in said
Act.

SECTION 2:  Nothing herein contained shall be construed to apply said general
prevailing rate of wages as herein ascertained to any work or employment except public works
construction of the DuPage Airport Authority to the extent required by the aforesaid Act.

SECTION 3: The DuPage Airport Authority Secretary shall publicly post or keep
available for inspection by any interested party in the main office of the DuPage Airport
Authority this determination or any revisions of such prevailing rate of wages. A copy of this
determination or of the current revised determination of prevailing rate of wages then in effect
shall be attached to all contract specifications.

30



SECTION 4: The DuPage airport Authority Secretary shall mail a copy of this
determination to any employer, and to any association of employers and to any person or
association of employees who have filed their names and addresses, requesting copies of any
determination stating the particular rates and the particular class of workers whose wages will
be affected by such rates.

SECTION 5: The DuPage Airport Authority Secretary shall promptly file a certified
copy of this Ordinance with the Department of Labor of the State of lllinois.

SECTION 6: The DuPage Airport Authority Secretary shall cause to be published in a
newspaper of general circulation within the area a notice of the determination made hereby,
and such publication shall constitute notice that such determination is effective.

SECTION 7:  Prior Ordinances: This ordinance repeals Ord inance 2014-285 and shall
be placed in the DuPage Airport Authority Code.

SECTION 8: That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval as provided by law.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and
approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority
this 24 day of June, 2015.

Chairman

Secretary

31



6/15/2015 Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2015

Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 20135

(See explanation of column headings at bottom of wages)

Trade Name RG TYP C Base FRMAN M-F>8 OSA OSH H/W Pensn
ASBESTOS ABT-GEN ALL 38.200 38.7900 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.78 10.12
ASBESTOS ABT-MEC BLD 35.100 37.600 1.5 1.5 2.9 11.17 10.76
BOILERMAKER BLD 45.650 49,760 2.0 2.0 2.9 6.979 17.81
BRICK MASON BLD 42.580 46.840 1.5 1.5 2.9 9.850 13.60
CARPENTER ALL 43.350 45.35@ 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.29 13.75
CEMENT MASON ALL 39.250 41.250 2.9 1.5 2.6 12.70 17.14
CERAMIC TILE FNSHER BLD 35.810 ©0.000 1.5 1.5 2.9 190.55 8.449
COMMUNICATION TECH BLD 32.650 34.750 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.550 15.16
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT OP ALL 37.89@ 51.480 1.5 1.5 2.9 5.000 11.75
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT OP HWY 39.220 53.290 1.5 1.5 2.0 5.000 12.17
ELECTRIC PWR GRNDMAN ALL 29.300 51.480 1.5 1.5 2.0 5.000 9.090
ELECTRIC PWR GRNDMAN HWY 30.339 53.290 1.5 1.5 2.0 5.000 9.400
ELECTRIC PWR LINEMAN ALL 45,369 51.4809 1.5 1.5 2.9 5.000 14.06
ELECTRIC PWR LINEMAN HWY  46.950 53.290 1.5 1.5 2.9 5.000 14.56
ELECTRIC PWR TRK DRV ALL 30.340 51.480 1.5 1.5 2.0 5.000 9.400
ELECTRIC PWR TRK DRV HWY 31.400 53.290 1.5 1.5 2.0 5.000 9.730
ELECTRICIAN BLD 38.160 41.980 1.5 1.5 2.9 9.550 18.29
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR BLD 50.80@ 57.150 2.9 2.0 2.0 13.57 14.21
FENCE ERECTOR NE ALL 35.849 37.840 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.01 11.51
FENCE ERECTOR W ALL 45.060 48.660 2.0 2.0 2.0 19.52 18.81
GLAZIER BLD 40.000 41.500 1.5 2.9 2.9 12.49 15.99
HT/FROST INSULATOR BLD 48.450 50.950 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.47 12.16
IRON WORKER E ALL 43.000 45.000 2.0 2.0 2.0 13.45 20.65
IRON WORKER W ALL 45.060 48.660 2.0 2.0 2.0 10.52 18.81
LABORER ALL 38.000 38.750 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.78 10.12
LATHER ALL 43,350 45.350 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.29 13.75
MACHINIST BLD 44,350 46.850 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.760 8.950
MARBLE FINISHERS ALL 31.400 32.57¢ 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.850 13.10
MARBLE MASON BLD 41,780 45.960 1.5 1.5 2.9 9.850 13.42
MATERIAL TESTER I ALL 28.900 ©0.900 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.78 10.12
MATERIALS TESTER II ALL 33.000 0.9000 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.78 10.12
MILLWRIGHT ALL 43,359 45.350 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.29 13.75
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 1 47.100 51.100 2.0 2.6 2.0 17.10 11.8@
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 2 45.800 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.9 17.10 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 3 43.250 51.100 2.0 2.8 2.0 17.10 11.806
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 4 41.500 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 5 50.850 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.89
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 6 48.100 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 7 50.100 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.9 17.10 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 35.000 35.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.60 11.05
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 1 45.309 49.3@0 1.5 1.5 2.9 17.10 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 2 44.750 49.3@0 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.19 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 3 42.720 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.6 17.10 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 4 41.300 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 5 40,100 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.19 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 6 48.300 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 7 46.300 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.89
ORNAMNTL IRON WORKER E ALL 43,900 46.400 2.0 2.0 2.9 13.36 17.24
ORNAMNTL IRON WORKER W ALL 45,060 48.660 2.0 2.9 2.0 190.52 18.81
PAINTER ALL 41.730 43.730 1.5 1.5 1.5 16.30 8.200
PAINTER SIGNS BLD 33.920 38.090 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.600 2.710
PILEDRIVER ALL 43.350 45.350 1.5 1.5 2.9 13.29 13.75
PIPEFITTER BLD 46.000 49.9000 1.5 1.5 2.9 9.009 15.85
PLASTERER BLD 41.250 43.760 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.700 13.08
PLUMBER BLD 46,650 48.659 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.18 11.46
ROOFER BLD 49.100 43.100 1.5 1.5 2.9 8.280¢ 10.54
SHEETMETAL WORKER BLD 44,000 46.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 108.65 13.06

http:/Avww illingis.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/rates/2015/june/DU_PAGES.htm

32

77



6/15/2015 Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2015

SPRINKLER FITTER BLD 49.200 51.200 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.75
STEEL ERECTOR E ALL 42.070 44.970@ 2.0 2.0 2.9 13.45
STEEL ERECTOR W ALL 45.060 48.668 2.0 2.0 2.9 10.52
STONE MASON BLD 42.580 46.840 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.850
SHRVEY—WORKER— -> NOT IN EFFECT ALL  37.000 37.75@
TERRAZZO FINISHER BLD 37.040 0.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.55
TERRAZZO MASON BLD 40.880 43.880 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.55
TILE MASON BLD 42.840 46.840 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.55
TRAFFIC SAFETY WRKR HWY 32.758 34.350 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.550
TRUCK DRIVER ALL 1 32.559 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500
TRUCK DRIVER ALL 2 32.700 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500
TRUCK DRIVER ALL 3 32.900 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500
TRUCK DRIVER ALL 4 33.100 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500
TUCKPOINTER BLD 41.620 42.620 1.5 1.5 2.9 9.859

Legend: RG (Region)

TYP (Trade Type - All,Highway,Building,Floating,0il & Chip,Rivers)

C (Class)

Base (Base Wage Rate)

FRMAN (Foreman Rate)

M-F>8 (OT required for any hour greater than B worked each day, Mon through Fri.
0SA (Overtime (OT) is required for every hour worked on Saturday)

OSH (Overtime is required for every hour worked on Sunday and Holidays)
H/W (Health & Welfare Insurance)

Pensn (Pension)

Vac (Vacation)

Trng (Training)

Explanations
DUPAGE COUNTY

IRON WORKERS AND FENCE ERECTOR (WEST) - West of Route 53.

9.650
19.59
18.81
13.60
1.5

19.32
11.63
19.42
6.450
4,350
4.350
4,350
4.350
12.61

e.
Q.
e.
. 000
.5 2.
.000
.000
.0009
.000
.000
. 000
.000
.000
.000

DO POORO

The following list is considered as those days for which holiday rates

of wages for work performed apply: New Years Day, Memorial Day,
Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and

Veterans Day in some classifications/counties. Generally, any of
these holidays which fall on a Sunday is celebrated on the following

Monday. This then makes work performed on that Monday payable at the
appropriate overtime rate for holiday pay. Common practice in a given

local may alter certain days of celebration. If in doubt, please

check with IDOL.

EXPLANATION OF CLASSES

ASBESTOS - GENERAL - removal of asbestos material/mold and hazardous
materials from any place in a building, including mechanical systems
where those mechanical systems are to be removed. This includes the

removal of asbestos materials/mold and hazardous materials from

ductwork or pipes in a building when the building is to be demolished

at the time or at some close future date.

ASBESTOS - MECHANICAL - removal of asbestos material from mechanical
systems, such as pipes, ducts, and boilers, where the mechanical

systems are to remain.

TRAFFIC SAFETY - work associated with barricades, horses and drums

used to reduce lane usage on highway work, the installation and

removal of temporary lane markings, and the installation and removal

of temporary road signs.

CERAMIC TILE FINISHER

The grouting, cleaning, and polishing of all classes of tile, whether

for interior or exterior purposes, all burned, glazed or unglazed
products; all composition materials, granite tiles, warning detectable

tiles, cement tiles, epoxy composite materials, pavers, glass,

http:/Mmww illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/rates/2015/june/DU_PAGES.htm

000
000
000

0.550@
@.350
0.400
1.030
© 12.97 9.930 0.000 0.500
0.620
0.820
9.920
9.500
0.150
0.150
9.150
0.150
0.650

33



6/15/2015 Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2015

mosaics, fiberglass, and all substitute materials, for tile made in
tile-like units; all mixtures in tile like form of cement, metals, and
other materials that are for and intended for use as a finished floor
surface, stair treads, promenade roofs, walks, walls, ceilings,
swimming pools, and all other places where tile is to form a finished
interior or exterior. The mixing of all setting mortars including but
not limited to thin-set mortars, epoxies, wall mud, and any other

sand and cement mixtures or adhesives when used in the preparation,
installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or similar materials.
The handling and unloading of all sand, cement, lime, tile,

fixtures, equipment, adhesives, or any other materials to be used in
the preparation, installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or
similar materials. Ceramic Tile Finishers shall fill all joints and
voids regardless of method on all tile work, particularly and
especially after installation of said tile work. Application of any
and all protective coverings to all types of tile installations
including, but not be limited to, all soap compounds, paper products,
tapes, and all polyethylene coverings, plywood, masonite, cardboard,
and any new type of products that may be used to protect tile
installations, Blastrac equipment, and all floor scarifying equipment
used in preparing floors to receive tile. The clean up and removal of
all waste and materials. All demolition of existing tile floors and
walls to be re-tiled.

COMMUNICATIONS TECHNICIAN

Low voltage installation, maintenance and removal of telecommunication
facilities (voice, sound, data and video) including telephone and

data inside wire, interconnect, terminal equipment, central offices,
PABX, fiber optic cable and equipment, micro waves, V-SAT, bypass,
CATV, WAN (wide area networks), LAN (local area networks), and ISDN
(integrated system digital network), pulling of wire in raceways, but
not the installation of raceways.

MARBLE FINISHER

Loading and unloading trucks, distribution of all materials (all
stone, sand, etc.), stocking of floors with material, performing all
rigging for heavy work, the handling of all material that may be
needed for the installation of such materials, building of
scaffolding, polishing if needed, patching, waxing of material if
damaged, pointing up, caulking, grouting and cleaning of marble,
holding water on diamond or Carborundum blade or saw for setters
cutting, use of tub saw or any other saw needed for preparation of
material, drilling of holes for wires that anchor material set by
setters, mixing up of molding plaster for installation of material,
mixing up thin set for the installation of material, mixing up of sand
to cement for the installation of material and such other work as may
be required in helping a Marble Setter in the handling of all

material in the erection or installation of interior marble, slate,
travertine, art marble, serpentine, alberene stone, blue stone,
granite and other stones (meaning as to stone any foreign or domestic
materials as are specified and used in building interiors and
exteriors and customarily known as stone in the trade), carrara,
sanionyx, vitrolite and similar opaque glass and the laying of all
marble tile, terrazzo tile, slate tile and precast tile, steps, risers
treads, base, or any other materials that may be used as substitutes
for any of the aforementioned materials and which are used on interior
and exterior which are installed in a similar manner.

MATERIAL TESTER I: Hand coring and drilling for testing of materials;
field inspection of uncured concrete and asphalt.

MATERIAL TESTER II: Field inspection of welds, structural steel,

fireproofing, masonry, soil, facade, reinforcing steel, formwork,
cured concrete, and concrete and asphalt batch plants; adjusting

http:/Avww.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/rates/2015/une/DU_PAGES.htm



6/15/2015 Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2015

proportions of bituminous mixtures.
OPERATING ENGINEER - BUILDING

Class 1. Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Spreader; Autograde; Backhoes with
Caisson Attachment; Batch Plant; Benoto (requires Two Engineers);
Boiler and Throttle Valve; Caisson Rigs; Central Redi-Mix Plant;
Combination Back Hoe Front End-loader Machine; Compressor and Throttle
Valve; Concrete Breaker (Truck Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete
Conveyor (Truck Mounted); Concrete Paver Over 27E cu. ft; Concrete
Paver 27E cu. ft. and Under: Concrete Placer; Concrete Placing Boom;
Concrete Pump (Truck Mounted); Concrete Tower; Cranes, All; Cranes,
Hammerhead; Cranes, (GCI and similar Type); Creter Crane; Spider
Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc.; Derricks, All; Derricks, Traveling;
Formless Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating; Grouting
Machines; Heavy Duty Self-Propelled Transporter or Prime Mover;
Highlift Shovels or Front Endloader 2-1/4 yd. and over; Hoists,
Elevators, outside type rack and pinion and similar machines; Hoists,
One, Two and Three Drum; Hoists, Two Tugger One Floor; Hydraulic
Backhoes; Hydraulic Boom Trucks; Hydro Vac (and similar equipment);
Locomotives, All; Motor Patrol; Lubrication Technician; Manipulators;
Pile Drivers and Skid Rig; Post Hole Digger; Pre-Stress Machine; Pump
Cretes Dual Ram; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes-Screw Type Pumps; Gypsum
Bulker and Pump; Raised and B8lind Hole Drill; Roto Mill Grinder;
Scoops - Tractor Drawn; Slip-Form Paver; Straddle Buggies; Operation
of Tie Back Machine; Tournapull; Tractor with Boom and Side Boom;
Trenching Machines.

Class 2. Boilers; Broom, All Power Propelled; Bulldozers; Concrete
Mixer (Two Bag and Over); Conveyor, Portable; Forklift Trucks;
Highlift Shovels or Front Endloaders under 2-1/4 yd.; Hoists,
Automatic; Hoists, Inside Elevators; Hoists, Sewer Dragging Machine;
Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Laser Screed; Rock Drill (Self-Propelled);
Rock Drill (Truck Mounted); Rollers, All; Steam Generators; Tractors,
All; Tractor Drawn Vibratory Roller; Winch Trucks with "A" Frame.

Class 3. Air Compressor; Combination Small Equipment Operator;
Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hoists, Inside Elevators (remodeling
or renovation work); Hydraulic Power Units (Pile Driving, Extracting,
and Drilling); Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 308
ft.); Low Boys; Pumps, Well Points; Welding Machines (2 through 5);
Winches, 4 Small Electric Drill Winches.

Class 4. Bobcats and/or other Skid Steer Loaders; Oilers; and Brick
Forklift.

Class 5. Assistant Craft Foreman.
Class 6. Gradall.

Class 7. Mechanics; Welders.

OPERATING ENGINEERS - HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

Class 1. Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Heater and Planer Combination; Asphalt
Heater Scarfire; Asphalt Spreader; Autograder/GOMACO or other similar
type machines: ABG Paver; Backhoes with Caisson Attachment; Ballast
Regulator; Belt Loader; Caisson Rigs; Car Dumper; Central Redi-Mix
Plant; Combination Backhoe Front Endloader Machine, (1 cu. yd. Backhoe
Bucket or over or with attachments); Concrete Breaker (Truck

Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete Paver over 27E cu. ft.; Concrete
Placer; Concrete Tube Float; Cranes, all attachments; Cranes, Tower
Cranes of all types: Creter Crane: Spider Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc.;
Derricks, All; Derrick Boats; Derricks, Traveling; Dredges;

Elevators, Outside type Rack & Pinion and Similar Machines; Formless

http:/Mmww.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/rates/2015/june/DU_PAGES.ntm



6/15/2015 Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2015

Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating; Grader, Motor Grader,
Motor Patrol, Auto Patrol, Form Grader, Pull Grader, Subgrader; Guard
Rail Post Driver Truck Mounted; Hoists, One, Two and Three Drum; Heavy
Duty Self-Propelled Transporter or Prime Mover; Hydraulic Backhoes;
Backhoes with shear attachments up to 40' of boom reach; Lubrication
Technician; Manipulators; Mucking Machine; Pile Drivers and Skid Rig;
Pre-Stress Machine; Pump Cretes Dual Ram; Rock Drill - Crawler or Skid
Rig; Rock Drill - Truck Mounted; Rock/Track Tamper; Roto Mill

Grinder; Slip-Form Paver; Snow Melters; Soil Test Drill Rig (Truck
Mounted); Straddle Buggies; Hydraulic Telescoping Form (Tunnel);
Operation of Tieback Machine; Tractor Drawn Belt Loader; Tractor
Drawn Belt Loader (with attached pusher - two engineers); Tractor with
Boom; Tractaire with Attachments; Traffic Barrier Transfer Machine;
Trenching; Truck Mounted Concrete Pump with Boom; Raised or Blind Hole
Drills (Tunnel Shaft); Underground Boring and/or Mining Machines 5

ft. in diameter and over tunnel, etc; Underground Boring and/or Mining
Machines under 5 ft. in diameter; Wheel Excavator; Widener (APSCO).

Class 2. Batch Plant; Bituminous Mixer; Boiler and Throttle Valve;
Bulldozers; Car Loader Trailing Conveyors; Combination Backhoe Front
Endloader Machine (Less than 1 cu. yd. Backhoe Bucket or over or with
attachments); Compressor and Throttle Valve; Compressor, Common
Receiver (3); Concrete Breaker or Hydro Hammer; Concrete Grinding
Machine; Concrete Mixer or Paver 7S Series to and including 27 cu.
ft.; Concrete Spreader; Concrete Curing Machine, Burlap Machine,
Belting Machine and Sealing Machine; Concrete Wheel Saw; Conveyor Muck
Cars (Haglund or Similar Type); Drills, All; Finishing Machine -
Concrete; Highlift Shovels or Front Endloader; Hoist - Sewer Dragging
Machine; Hydraulic Boom Trucks (All Attachments); Hydro-Blaster; Hydro
Excavating (excluding hose work); Laser Screed; All Locomotives,
Dinky; Off-Road Hauling Units (including articulating) Non
Self-Loading Ejection Dump; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes - Screw Type
Pumps, Gypsum Bulker and Pump; Roller, Asphalt; Rotary Snow Plows;
Rototiller, Seaman, etc., self-propelled; Self-Propelled Compactor;
Spreader - Chip - Stone, etc.; Scraper - Single/Twin Engine/Push and
Pull; Scraper - Prime Mover in Tandem (Regardless of Size); Tractors
pulling attachments, Sheeps Foot, Disc, Compactor, etc.; Tug Boats.

Class 3. Boilers; Brooms, All Power Propelled; Cement Supply Tender;
Compressor, Common Receiver (2); Concrete Mixer (Two Bag and Over);
Conveyor, Portable; Farm-Type Tractors Used for Mowing, Seeding, etc.;
Forklift Trucks; Grouting Machine; Hoists, Automatic; Hoists, All
Elevators; Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Jeep Diggers; Low Boys; Pipe
Jacking Machines; Post-Hole Digger; Power Saw, Concrete Power Driven;
Pug Mills; Rollers, other than Asphalt; Seed and Straw Blower; Steam
Generators; Stump Machine; Winch Trucks with "A" Frame; Work Boats;
Tamper-Form-Motor Driven.

Class 4. Air Compressor; Combination - Small Equipment Operator;
Directional Boring Machine; Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hydraulic
Power Unit (Pile Driving, Extracting, or Drilling); Light Plants, All
(1 through 5); Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 300
ft.); Pumps, Well Points; Vacuum Trucks (excluding hose work); Welding
Machines (2 through 5); Winches, 4 Small Electric Drill Winches.

Class 5. SkidSteer Loader (all); Brick Forklifts; Oilers.

Class 6. Field Mechanics and Field Welders

Class 7. Dowell Machine with Air Compressor; Gradall and machines of
like nature.

OPERATING ENGINEER - FLOATING

Diver. Diver Wet Tender, Diver Tender, ROV Pilot, ROV Tender

http:/iwww illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/fCONMED/rates/2015/june/DU_PAGE9.htm



6/15/2015 Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2015

SURVEY WORKER - Operated survey equipment including data collectors,
G.P.S. and robotic instruments, as well as conventional levels and
transits.

TRUCK DRIVER - BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

Class 1. Two or three Axle Trucks. A-frame Truck when used for
transportation purposes; Air Compressors and Welding Machines,
including those pulled by cars, pick-up trucks and tractors;
Ambulances; Batch Gate Lockers; Batch Hopperman; Car and Truck
Washers; Carry-alls; Fork Lifts and Hoisters; Helpers; Mechanics
Helpers and Greasers; 0il Distributors 2-man operation; Pavement
Breakers; Pole Trailer, up to 40 feet; Power Mower Tractors;
Self-propelled Chip Spreader; Skipman; Slurry Trucks, 2-man
operation; Slurry Truck Conveyor Operation, 2 or 3 man; Teamsters;
Unskilled Dumpman; and Truck Drivers hauling warning lights,
barricades, and portable toilets on the job site.

Class 2. Four axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors under 7 yards;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnapulls or
Turnatrailers when pulling other than self-loading equipment or
similar equipment under 16 cubic yards; Mixer Trucks under 7 yeards;
Ready-mix Plant Hopper Operator, and Winch Trucks, 2 Axles.

Class 3. Five axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors 7 yards and over;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnatrailers or
turnapulls when pulling other than self-loading equipment or similar
equipment over 16 cubic yards; Explosives and/or Fission Material
Trucks; Mixer Trucks 7 yards or over; Mobile Cranes while in transit;
0il Distributors, 1-man operation; Pole Trailer, over 40 feet; Pole
and Expandable Trailers hauling material over 58 feet long; Slurry
trucks, 1-man operation; Winch trucks, 3 axles or more;
Mechanic--Truck Welder and Truck Painter.

Class 4. Six axle trucks; Dual-purpose vehicles, such as mounted
crane trucks with hoist and accessories; Foreman; Master Mechanic;
Self-loading equipment 1like P.B. and trucks with scoops on the front.

TERRAZZO FINISHER

The handling of sand, cement, marble chips, and all other materials
that may be used by the Mosaic Terrazzo Mechanic, and the mixing,
grinding, grouting, cleaning and sealing of all Marble, Mosaic, and
Terrazzo work, floors, base, stairs, and wainscoting by hand or
machine, and in addition, assisting and aiding Marble, Masonic, and
Terrazzo Mechanics.

Other Classifications of Work:

For definitions of classifications not otherwise set out, the
Department generally has on file such definitions which are available.
If a task to be performed is not subject to one of the

classifications of pay set out, the Department will upon being
contacted state which neighboring county has such a classification and
provide such rate, such rate being deemed to exist by reference in
this document. If no neighboring county rate applies to the task,
the Department shall undertake a special determination, such special
determination being then deemed to have existed under this
determination. If a project requires these, or any classification not
listed, please contact IDOL at 217-782-171@ for wage rates or
clarifications.

LANDSCAPING

http:/Aww.illinois.goviidol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/rates/2015/june/DU_PAGES.htm



6/15/2015 Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2015

Landscaping work falls under the existing classifications for laborer,
operating engineer and truck driver. The work performed by landscape
plantsman and landscape laborer is covered by the existing
classification of laborer. The work performed by landscape operators
(regardless of equipment used or its size) is covered by the
classifications of operating engineer. The work performed by
landscape truck drivers (regardless of size of truck driven) is
covered by the classifications of truck driver.

MATERIAL TESTER & MATERIAL TESTER/INSPECTOR I AND II

Notwithstanding the difference in the classification title, the
classification entitled "Material Tester I" involves the same job
duties as the classification entitled "Material Tester/Inspector I".
Likewise, the classification entitled "Material Tester II" involves
the same job duties as the classification entitled "Material
Tester/Inspector II".

http:/AMww.illincis.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/rates/2015/une/DU_PAGES.htm

38

n



DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Dan Barna ,/l«ﬁ
Procurement Manager

THROUGH: David Bird Z?%
Executive Diréctor

RE: Proposed Resolution 2015-1955; Award of Contract to Builders Chicago Corporation
for Replacement of Four (4) Electric Gate Operators

DATE: June 15, 2015

SUMMARY:

The Airport Authority’s 2015 Capital Program includes a project to replace four (4) gate operators on
the north and south “cattle” gates which are utilized by line service and customer vehicle traffic. The
existing gate operators are over 22 years old and have reached the end of their service life. The project
will include complete gate operator replacement at each of the vertical tilt gates and will also include
new loop sensors.

A solicitation for sealed bids was advertised in the May 16, 2015 edition of the Daily Herald
Newspaper. Two (2) sealed bids were received and opened at 2:30 p.m. on June 8, 2015. Bid results
are as follows:

Bidder Bid Option 1 Bid Option 2
(Gate Operator Refurbish / Repair) | (Gate Operator Replacement)
Builders Chicago Corp. $132,531 $104,765
Schiller Park, IL
Gate Options $144,650 $151,175
West Chicago, IL

Upon evaluation of the bids, it is apparent that Builders Chicago Corporation is the low, responsive
and responsible bidder. Builders Chicago currently performs quality gate repair work under a Master
Agreement with the Airport Authority.

Staff recommends award of Bid Option 2 for the replacement of four (4) gate operators in the amount
of $104,765.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:
June 24, 2015 Finance, Budget and Audit Committee — this item is being reviewed by the Committee.

39



REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:

2015 Capital Budget $173,800.00
Builders Chicago Construction Cost -$104,765.00
Owner's Contingency (5%) -$5,238.25
$63,796.75

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:

No stakeholders have been identified at this time.

LEGAL REVIEW:
Legal counsel has previously drafted the standard contract utilized for this project.

ATTACHMENTS:
o Site Exhibit
o Proposed Resolution 2015-1955; Award of Contract to Builders Chicago Corporation for
Replacement of Four (4) Electric Gate Operators.
o Statement of Political Contributions.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director and Staff that the Board approve Proposed
Resolution 2015-1955; Award of Contract to Builders Chicago Corporation for Replacement of Four
(4) Electric Gate Operators.

40



Resolution 2015-1955
Award of Contract to Builders Chicago Corporation for Replacement of Four (4) Electric Gate Operators

South “Cattle” Gate

Gate Operator

North “Cattle” Gate

41



RESOLUTION 2015-1955

Award of Contract to Builders Chicago Corporation for Replacement of Four (4) Electric
Gate Operators

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority (“Authority””), DuPage County, [llinois
is a duly authorized and existing Airport Authority under the laws of the State of Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has solicited sealed bids for the replacement of four
(4) Ideal Tilt-Away Electric Gate Operators; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has received and reviewed two (2) sealed bids on
June 8, 2015; and

WHEREAS, it is apparent that Builders Chicago Corporation is the low,
responsive and responsible bidder at a lump sum cost of $104,765; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority be authorized to
enter into a written Contract with Builders Chicago Corporation for a total cost not-to-exceed
$110,003.25, which includes a 5% owner’s contingency; and

FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director, David Bird to execute said
Contract with Builders Chicago Corporation and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate
the terms of said Contract.

This resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its adoption and
approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. L.edonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this 24th
day of June 2015.

CHAIRMAN
(ATTEST)

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2015-1955



DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
IDEAL TILT-AWAY GATE OPERATOR REPAIR
SOLICITATION NO. 2015-0515

STATEMENT OF POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Builders Chirage Cogoraten

(name of entity or individual) ”

5129 Peart Stheet
Sthiler Pouk, T O

(address of entity or individual)

1. List the name and office of every elected official, as that term is defined in the DuPage
Airport Authority's Procurement Policy, whom a contribution, exceeding $150.00 total,
was made to in the 24 months preceding the execution of this form. For each elected
official, provide, in the space provided, the date of the contribution(s), the amount of the
contribution(s) and the form of the contribution(s). If additional space is needed, please
attach a separate sheet of paper containing a full and complete list.

Elected Official Office Date Amount Form

e Ky A NI NjR . NIE

NOTE: If this statement of political contributions is being made on behalf of a business
entity or other type of organization, a separate, additional, statement of political
contributions may be required by the DuPage Airport Authority. When making this
statement of political contributions in an individual capacity, you must include
contribution(s) made by your spouse and dependant children. See pages 11-13 of the
Procurement Policy of the DuPage Airport Authority for said requirements.

VERIFICATION:

"T declare that this statement of political contributions (including any accompanying lists
of contributions) has been examined by me and to the best of my knowledge and belief is
a true, correct and complete statement of my (or the entities) political contributions as
required by the Procurement Policy of the DuPage Airport Authority. Further, by signing
this document I authorize the DuPage Airport Authority to disclose this information as it
sees fit."

(] 08/ 1S~ /4:%1./7/77 )4&/ ﬂ)&héﬂu) Manager

" (date) /" (signature) (title of signer, if a business)

26
43



TO: Board of Commissioners U P AG E A| RPO RT
FROM: Mark Doles AUTH O R ITY

Director, Aviation Facilities and Properties

THROUGH: David Bird
Executive Director

RE: Proposed Resolution 2015-1956; Authorizing the Execution of a Second
Amendment to Task Order 18 with CH2M Hill, Inc. for Transient Hangar
Bridging Document Preparation.

DATE: June 17, 2015

SUMMARY:

This is a second proposed amendment to an existing Task Order with CH2M Hill to
provide documentation to assist in the design and construction of a new transient hangar
for the Airport Authority.

Previously, the Board approved Resolution 2014-1827, authorizing a Task Order with
CH2M Hill for Transient Hangar Bridging Document Preparation and an amendment was
approved by Resolution 2015-1911 due to several major elements; including clear span,
roof lines and site work required that expanded the original scope of the project.

The DuPage Airport Authority received three guaranteed maximum proposals
(“GMAX?™) proposals and presentations from the approved design/build firms on April
30, 2015.

All three of the proposals exceeded the budgetary figure of $10M.

During the presentations, all three firms conveyed that the original design of the “waved”
roof and architectural details, while visually impressive, contributed to the resulting high
construction costs.

In order to have this important project able to be awarded and financially justifiable,
simplification of the some of the design features is required.

The project team comprised of DAA Staff and CH2M Hill has reviewed comments from
the design/build firms and collaborated to identify features that can be simplified from a
cost standpoint. This proposed amendment will provide plan changes that can then be
resubmitted to the design/build firms for GMAX pricing.

44



All of the design/build firms confirmed, that even with no changes, the hangar project
would not be delivered for use until around April of 2016. This delay to simplify the
project will not impact our use of the facility as it will still be able to be occupied by late
2016 before winter weather.

This proposed amendment for $40,000 will result in a new total fee of $224,000.

PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:

February 11,2015  Board approved Resolution 2015-1911; Authorizing the Execution
of an amendment to Task Order with CH2M Hill for Transient
Hangar Bridging Document Preparation

March 19,2014 Board approved Resolution 2014-1827; Authorizing the Execution
of a Task Order with CH2M Hill for Transient Hangar Bridging
Document Preparation

REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:

The budget for this project remains the same at $10M and is included in the approved
2015 Capital Budget. If awarded, the majority of construction, will occur in 2016 and
staff will insure that sufficient funds are allocated within the FY 2016 Capital Budget.
Expenses related for this task order will be charged to the project.

Original Task Order $113,000
Amendment 1 $ 71,000
Proposed Amendment 2 $ 40.000
Total $224,000
STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:

Not applicable.

LEGAL REVIEW:

Legal counsel has previously reviewed the Master Agreement to which the existing Task
Order and proposed amendment with CH2M Hill will apply.

ATTACHMENTS:

> Proposed Resolution 2015-1956; Authorizing the Execution of a Second
Amendment to Task Order 18 with CH2M Hill, Inc. for Transient Hangar
Bridging Document Preparation.

45



ALTERNATIVES:
The Committee/Board can deny, modify or amend this issue.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is the recommendation of the Executive Director and staff that the Board approves
Proposed Resolution 2015-1956; Authorizing the Execution of a Second Amendment to
Task Order 18 with CH2M Hill, Inc. for Transient Hangar Bridging Document
Preparation.; at the June 24, 2015 Board meeting.

46



RESOLUTION 2015-1956

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A SECOND AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER 18 WITH
CH2M HILL, INC. FOR TRANSIENT HANGAR BRIDGING DOCUMENT PREPARATION

WHEREAS, the DuPage Airport Authority, a special district (“Authority”), previously selected CH2M
Hill, Inc. to provide planning, design and construction services for various construction projects pursuant to the
Local Government Professional Services Selection Act, 50 ILCS 510/0.01 et seq. (the “Act”);

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2014-1827, authorizing a Task
Order with CH2M Hill for Transient Hangar Bridging Document Preparation (the “Project”) in the amount of
$113,000; and

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2015, the Authority approved Resolution 2015-1911, authorizing an
amendment to said Task Order in the amount of $71,000; and

WHEREAS, additional revisions are required to help mitigate construction costs and therefore, CHZM
Hill has requested additional fees to complete this Project.

WHEREAS, the Authority finds that it is in the best interest of the Authority to enter into an Second
Amendment to the Task Order with CH2M Hill for Transient Hangar Bridging Document Preparation in the
additional amount of $40,000.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport
Authority enter into the Second Amendment and the Executive Director of the DuPage Airport Authority be and
is hereby authorized to execute said Amendment, attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”, for and
on behalf of the DuPage Airport Authority and take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of this Task
Order.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and approval.

Juan E. Chavez Gina R. LaMantia
Stephen L. Davis Michael V. Ledonne
Charles E. Donnelly Gregory J. Posch
Peter H. Huizenga Donald C. Sharp

Daniel J. Wagner

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this 24" day of June,
2015.

ATTEST: CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2015-1956

47



MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners
DuPage Airport Authority

FROM: Phillip A. Luetkehans
DATE: June 16, 2015

RE: Simpson Strong-Tie Concept Plan Application (2505 Enterprise Circle)

In 2005, the DuPage Airport Authority (the “DAA”) previously approved a Development Plan
for the property at 2505 Enterprise Circle. Thereafter, CenterPoint leased the property to Pella
Corporation. Pella’s lease is due to expire and CenterPoint is in the process of re-leasing the
property to Simpson Strong-Tie (“Simpson™). If Simpson is to enter into a lease for the property,
it is our understanding that Simpson will require certain modifications to the building and site to
utilize the property for their business. Under our agreement with CenterPoint and the City of
West Chicago, the Concept Plan was submitted in time for review at the DAA’s June 24, 2015
Board Meeting.

The latest copy of that Expansion Concept Plan is being provided to you with this memo. The
significant modifications to the site and improvements can be found on the north side of the
building. Simpson is not requesting any variations from the West Chicago Zoning Ordinance or
the Minimum Design Standards of the Park.

The DAA’s Consultant, SmithGroup JJR, has advised that the Expansion Concept Plan meets the
standards of Section 10.5 and the Minimum Design Standards for the Park.

Under the agreements with West Chicago and CenterPoint, approval of the Concept Plan will
still require a full review of a Development Plan by the DAA and West Chicago prior to any
construction. That Development Plan is required to be much more detailed than what you have
before you and will need to include information such as landscaping plans, civil engineering
drawings and storm water information.

This law firm recommends approval of the Expansion Concept Plan for 2505 Enterprise Circle
with the conditions set forth in the Resolution.

48



RESOLUTION 2015-1957

APPROVING THE CONCEPT PLAN FOR MODIFICATIONS TO 2505 ENTERPRISE
CIRCLE

WHEREAS, on May 1, 2012, the DuPage Airport Authority (the “DAA”) and CenterPoint
Properties Trust (“CNT”) entered into an Amended and Restated Agreement to Develop and
Lease (the “Agreement”) relating to the property commonly known as the DuPage Business
Center;

WHEREAS, CNT previously submitted, and the DAA approved a Development Plan for
the property located at 2505 Enterprise Circle in the DuPage Business Center (the “Subject
Property”);

WHEREAS, CNT previously improved the Subject Property in accordance with the
Development Plan and leased it to Pella Corporation (“Pella”);

WHEREAS, Pella’s lease is set to expire, and CNT desires to lease the Subject Property
to Simpson Strong-Tie (“Simpson”);

WHEREAS, Simpson desires to make certain modifications to the Subject Property and
the current improvements thereon;

WHEREAS, Simpson has submitted a Concept Plan dated May 29, 2015 showing the
modifications to the Subject Property and the current improvements thereon (“Concept Plan”);

WHEREAS, the Concept Plan requests no variations from either the Minimum Design
Standards of the DuPage Business Center or Section 10.5 of the West Chicago Zoning
Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the DAA deems it to be in the best interests of the DAA to approve the
Concept Plan subject to the following conditions:

a. approval of the Concept Plan and any necessary variations by the City of West
Chicago; and

b. approval of the Development Plan by the by the DAA Board of Commissioners
and any additional conditions set forth at the time of such Development Plan
review and approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority hereby approves the Expansion Concept Plan dated April 21, 2015,
subject to the following conditions:

a. approval of the Expansion Concept Plan and any necessary variations by the City
of West Chicago; and

49



b. approval of the Development Plan by the by the DAA Board of Commissioners
and any additional conditions set forth at the time of such Development Plan
review and approval.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and
approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this 24th
day of June 2015.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2015-1957

50



MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners
DuPage Airport Authority

FROM: Phillip A. Luetkehans

DATE: June 16, 2015
RE: Project Steel/DS Container Expansion Concept Plan Application (2500 Enterprise
Circle)

CenterPoint recently submitted a Concept Plan Application to the DuPage Airport Authority (the
“DAA”) for the expansion of the DS Steel Container property at 2500 Enterprise Circle located
in the portion of the DuPage Business Center south of Fabyan (the “Expansion Concept Plan™).
As you may recall, the Development Plan for the first 14.55 acres of the DS Steel Container
property was recently approved by the Board of Commissioners. The purchase price of
$1,350,699 for the remaining 10.51 acres has already been agreed to under the prior Vacant Land
Purchase Agreement previously entered into by the CNT and the DAA. Under our agreement
with CenterPoint and the City of West Chicago, the Expansion Concept Plan was submitted in
time for review at the DAA’s June 24, 2015 Board Meeting.

The latest copy of that Expansion Concept Plan is being provided to you with this memo. As
you can see, the proposed expansion somewhat mirrors the existing building by expanding the
building to the west. This project, due to its location in the park, requires the following
deviations from the West Chicago Zoning Ordinance (*“Section 10.5”):

a. variance from Section 10.5-10(F)(8) to permit loading or servicing to be
conducted between the south facade of the building and the southern portion of
Enterprise Circle;

b. variance from Section 10.5-10(F)(9) to permit loading spaces to be located closer
to the southern portion of Enterprise Circle right-of-way than the south facade of
the building; and

c. variance from Section 10.5-10(F)(10) to permit the storage of trailers (with or
without truck cabs) on the designated parking areas in the south side yard of the
Subject Property.

These exact three variations were required under the original Development Plan and approved by
the Board of Commissioners.

Other than the variations requested above, the DAA’s Consultant, SmithGroup JJR, has advised
that the Expansion Concept Plan meets the standards of Section 10.5 and the Minimum Design
Standards for the Park.

51



Under the agreements with West Chicago and CenterPoint, approval of the Concept Plan will
still require a full review of a Development Plan by the DAA and West Chicago prior to any
construction. That Development Plan is required to be much more detailed than what you have
before you and will need to include information such as landscaping plans, civil engineering
drawings and storm water information.

This law firm recommends approval of the Expansion Concept Plan for 2500 Enterprise Circle
with the conditions set forth in the Resolution.

52



RN S REMIRYS

9UO0]1SI9UJ0]) !

o~

et

5107 QLT SL0ILHOYY INOLSYINUOO®

Ovivi4

S10C ‘ST AN

o
LN

SIONTTT ‘'ODVIIHD LSTM — AALNHD SSHNTSNE AOVINQ

sai148doid U104 193Ud)

HTOUID HSTAJIH.LNAH 005¢

1334 001 me st N

el NV ALS

1
SNOILISOd
WATIVAI (59} _
N (ONTAV FLBDNOD) | SHOLIVAWOD A
H. feit s T~ S— s FOLHVIWOD =t By \
(50.0:b1L6) AT w_,ﬁv«vmm (003 | | muww.lﬁ .= S A X
mnwu_,. N h o e u%m Ht b S W | \
T S H H l _ H EE sl )1 \
T [H] Hron En_lg T TP I AT Ly Tty ._.Eon_ma ~ _Gwhmr: C—I. l\" _f. _.. \
a LIS IR P Al | B r 1%\
& ERITES] HOVIOLS 1 b & M| 3 o i I H “.
- RGEEN I ! 5 Yy “ m y \ \
o . 0
- I
= i m) 1 it 1
"0z e sava D) _ ,0-25 @ SAVE (6) | 2B _
4 7 Y-
0529 o | * 089 t e W wm o]
| 01zs -
| CE oL
i r
M ) : . -1 5 s : 4 m
> - ) 5 2 o 5
z8 8 SHIDV SSHT s - & SHIOV 0501 |
Q (=1 - . 73 - - . 'y
2 LAOS 8LT00€ 28 1408 S£6°05T |
E V ALITIDVA b T ANV .
T HSVHJ | ¢ ASYHd
aasododd | aasodoud
L 'y _
20
| R
._ 1306, N RS
LITH 0y | PN 2 A0 s
“ TR O WALKT _ -
i & P =il 3
| - B _ 7% of v ommdy 2
* f Hﬁwl_l_ X .
] x ) Trs Qe | F i
. - - . == o YTV TG IV . -
flLQ . U i e LU = FIFEBEEM_ U . U
| mﬂ.«ug.i._xﬁ@ SIS N o )
—— —————r o
A (] 5 ) TP TUT | (0 JL {]
RS [} "u , " u [ 3 U "
1 o B STIV1S ONDRIVE HvD | STIVIS DNDRIV HVD
\ . o FANLNE (1) ;M )
\ 3 n 3 N n 8l IR b 1] n
. L LY . gm et b 0 Ll iy 4 lece===taaa: BEILTY o e d
T - S ) N
-3 Ay et
ATOAID ASTITIHLNG
\\\...n... === N — — —

||




WS ALY

8U03SI8UI0D Wr,\

Sl0Z (17 S103LHOYY INOLSHINYCO®

<
LN

SIONTTI 'ODVIIHD [SAM -~ JATINAD SSANISNEG 4DV 1A

sailadold 3Ul0d 183U

o

HTOUID HSTAJTALNA 005¢

nt 4 |

roaryin | e | cmno |

| srome

i |

o e Ny

LELmON
Novalis,
TR

SSAAVANYLS NOIS3dA

AWM N-F TIV STISTY JATRIQ 1TV~
4394 ,0-8T AAQTM 076 ANV STTV LS 1TV~
JATS 000007 A0 $SAIXANIT TIDS000THVYO T
14705000001 OLIN LIDS 0001/ VD T

VIIV ISNOHANY M

LIDSO0N'/SIVO ¥

YAV A0

SINAWARITNDIY ONDI VA

EEE SLHOTEA HvET)

08 e QLLYR VAV 0074

SM00Q € - o - = - SI00C-NTHANG
00 1 SO0 AORTALNT
S0 gz~ ~ 200 JORTAIXA
SNOUISOd 99 -~ -~ - SNOLLISOd ATV

SYVD 1T = "LIDS000°T/ 1 OF FS7/L67 “VINY ASNOHAAV M
SUVD 001 = 14 0S000 T/ TLOS 000001 VANV ISOOHITVM
SAVD ¥S = ¥X LTOS 0001/ 140G 66£ €T 'VAMY HI1AO

SAVD €L DNV IV 910079
SAVD 65C DNV YD AAALNY
RAVD 6ET- - - — ONDIVI IV TVNLOV
SAYD 86€ -~ - o= o= IDNDIVA MYD Y101
140S 99FTES - - —— -—-- --—  CHSNOHTIVM
A0S 086 -~ - o~ o= == SNQOW ADVEOILS
140S 8e0% ' JOHS ANTHOVIN
1408 98 €8 D140
1405 122 TE ADTI40
A0S 0587 - BERERIEL(E)
LIDS €8806E - - - — — — (SSOAD YIIAVY DN1ATNG
SAAIV 90'ST

TL0S RIRTA0'T YAV LIS

‘Vivd



[Tg]
[Tg]

By sLaEL Ay SIONTTH ‘ODVIIHD 1SAM —— WFLNAD S§ANISNE ADVANa

ouoIsIoUIOD T o suraLaa A TOUID HSTAIIA.LNH 00S¢T

salljadold Julod 1eiued)

6107 QL7 S1031HOYY INOLSHINICO @

113408 o 0T 0
—

— - NOLLVATTE 15VA

T s : _ _ 1

— o NOILLVAZTH 15IM

1

— mms NOILYATTZ HLNOS

1334 08 or 08

| mmm NOLTVARIA HINON




RESOLUTION 2015-1959

APPROVING THE CONCEPT PLAN FOR EXPANSION OF BUILDING AT 2500
ENTERPRISE CIRCLE

WHEREAS, on May 1, 2012, the DuPage Airport Authority (the “DAA”) and CenterPoint
Properties Trust (“CNT”) entered into an Amended and Restated Agreement to Develop and
Lease (the “Agreement”) relating to the property commonly known as the DuPage Business
Center;

WHEREAS, CNT previously submitted, and the DAA approved, with certain variations,
a Development Plan dated February 10. 2015 for the property located at 2500 Enterprise Circle
in the DuPage Business Center (the “Subject Property”);

WHEREAS, CNT has submitted a Concept Plan dated June 15, 2015 for the expansion
of the building on the Subject Property (“Expansion Concept Plan”);

WHEREAS, the DAA deems it to be in the best interests of the DAA to approve the
Expansion Concept Plan subject to the following conditions:

a. approval of the Expansion Concept Plan and any necessary variations by the City
of West Chicago;

b. additional landscaping as approved by the DAA Board of Commissioners at the
time of Development Plan review and approval; and

c. approval of the Development Plan by the by the DAA Board of Commissioners
and any additional conditions set forth at the time of such Development Plan
review and approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority hereby approves the following variances to Section 10.5 of the current
Zoning Ordinance for the City of West Chicago for the Expansion Concept Plan:

a. variance from Section 10.5-10(F)(8) to permit loading or servicing to be
conducted between the south facade of the building and the southern portion of
Enterprise Circle;

b. variance from Section 10.5-10(F)(9) to permit loading spaces to be located closer
to the southern portion of Enterprise Circle right-of-way than the south fagade of
the building; and

c. variance from Section 10.5-10(F)(10) to permit the storage of trailers (with or
without truck cabs) on the designated parking areas in the south side yard of the
Subject Property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of
Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority hereby approves the Expansion Concept Plan
dated June 15, 2015, subject to the following conditions:

56



a. approval of the Expansion Concept Plan and any necessary variations by the City
of West Chicago;

b. additional landscaping as approved by the DAA Board of Commissioners at the
time of Development Plan review and approval; and

c. approval of the Development Plan by the by the DAA Board of Commissioners
and any additional conditions set forth at the time of such Development Plan
review and approval.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and
approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this 24th
day of June 2015.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2015-1959

57



MEMORANDUM

TO: DuPage Airport Authority Board of Commissioners
FROM: Phillip A. Luetkehans

SUBJECT: Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir Permanent Drainage Easement and Access
Easement

DATE: June 17, 2015

OUR FILE: DAA 2407

Several years ago, the DuPage Airport Authority (“DAA”) deeded property to DuPage County
(the “County”) to construct, operate and maintain the Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir
(“Reservoir”) northeast of the intersection of McChesney Road and Fabyan Parkway. The
County desires a permanent easement over certain property between the Reservoir and the north
line of Fabyan Parkway in order to access the Reservoir for maintenance purposes. The County
also desires a permanent easement extending 50 feet around the perimeter of the Reservoir for
purposes of maintaining the shore of the Reservoir and the property adjacent to the waterline of
the Reservoir. The parties contemplated that, although DAA was permitted to direct stormwater
from its property to the Reservoir, the County would maintain the Reservoir. However, the
agreement omitted the access and maintenance easement.

Attached is a revised draft easement agreement negotiated by our law firm with the County. We
have negotiated revisions to the easement following comments from the board upon the first
presentation of the agreement. The revisions clarify terms and definitions, make clear that the
casement does not impact DAA’s pre-existing drainage easement regarding the reservoir and
clarified rights regarding use of the easements.

The easements are permanent easements to allow the County ingress and egress to the Reservoir
and along the perimeter of the Reservoir in order to maintain the Reservoir. The easements are
not exclusive to the County and the County may not interfere with any other easement existing
on the property. While performing work on the property, the County must maintain insurance
and is required to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the DAA for any claims that arise out of
the County’s presence on the property or work on the property. At the DAA’s election, the
County must restore any damage to property or pay the DAA to restore the property. The DAA
remains responsible for routine surface maintenance of the easement area when the County is not
working in the area (for example, mowing grass).

58



This easement contains provisions nearly identical to other easements granted by the DAA. We
have negotiated the easement agreement with the County and the terms are acceptable to this
firm. Therefore, we recommend approval and execution of the easement agreement.

59



PERMANENT
DRAINAGE EASEMENT
AND ACCESS EASEMENT

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE
PRESENTS, that DuPage Airport Authority,
an Illinois special district, as property owner
(hereinafter referred to as "Grantor") for and
in consideration of one dollar ($1.00) and
other good and valuable consideration, receipt
whereof is hereby acknowledged, hereby
grant, convey and warrant to the County of
DuPage, Illinois, (hereinafter referred to as
"Grantee"), and its successors and/or assigns,

non-exclusive permanent easements
("Permanent Easements") for the purpose of
constructing, installing, maintaining,

operating, inspecting, repairing and accessing
the Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir, and
all appurtenances thereto.

Common Property Address: Vacant Land East of the East line of McChesney Road and
the vacated McChesney Road and North of the North Line of Fabyan Parkway, West

Chicago, [llinois 60185

Permanent Parcel Numbers: 04-08-303-017 and 04-08-303-018

Resolution number:

Prepared by:  DuPage County Public Works
421 North County Farm Rd.
Wheaton, [llinois 60187

Janet Williams

DuPage County Public Works
421 N. County Farm Rd.
Wheaton, IL. 60187

60



The Permanent Drainage Easement (the “Drainage Easement”) is legally described as
follows:

Within the Southwest Quarter of Section 8 and the Southeast Quarter of Section 7,
Township 39 North, Range 9, East of the Third Principal Meridian, being a 50.0 foot strip
of land having an irregular boundary around the perimeter of the Kress Creek Flood
Control Reservoir, or such lesser width at the easterly end to conform with the curvature
of the Fabyan Parkway right-of-way (ROW), said reservoir is legally described on the
attached Exhibit A and lying within Lot 1 of the Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir
Assessment Plat recorded April 21, 2015 as document R2015-041457 in DuPage County,
linois.

And

The Permanent Access Easement (the “Access Easement”) is legally described as
follows:

Within the Southerly 100.0 feet of that part of said Lot 1 of the Kress Creek Flood
Control Reservoir Assessment Plat recorded April 21, 2015 as document R2015-041457
in DuPage County, Illinois lying Easterly of the existing creek, or such lesser widths
towards the easterly side thereof as necessary to conform to the boundary of Lot 1 and the
curvature of the Fabyan Parkway right-of-way (ROW), for a distance of approximately
1000.0 feet Easterly of the existing creek, all in Lot 1 of the Kress Creek Flood Control
Reservoir Assessment Plat recorded April 21, 2015 as document R2015-041457 in
DuPage County, Illinois lying between the Southerly line of the Kress Creek Flood
Control Reservoir, said reservoir legally described on Exhibit A, and the Southerly line of
said Lot | also known as the Northerly line of Fabyan Parkway, all in the Southwest
Quarter of Section 8 and the Southeast Quarter of Section 7, Township 39 North, Range
9, East of the Third Principal Meridian, in DuPage County, Illinois.

RECITALS:
1. Grantor previously deeded land to Grantee for a flood control project entitled
“Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir” pursuant to an Intergovernmental Agreement

between Grantor and Grantee dated June 14, 2005 (the “IGA”).

2 All of the terms of the IGA and easements granted therein, including but not
limited to the Detention Easement Agreement attached to the IGA as Exhibit H, remain.

B Grantor and Grantee are entering into this Permanent Drainage and Access
Easement to allow Grantee the ability to maintain and access the Kress Creek Flood

Control Reservoir as set forth in this Permanent Drainage and Access Easement.

All of the above Recitals are incorporated herein as substantive terms of this Easement
Agreement.

61



This Grant is made by the Grantor and accepted by the Grantee under the following terms
and conditions:

Ik, Definitions: The following terms shall be understood to have the meaning set
forth herein:

a. “Easement Area” shall mean the collective area comprised of the Drainage
Easement and the Access Easement.

b. “Improvements” shall mean the Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir and
any and all currently existing appurtenances, equipment or fixtures
thereto, including but not limited to a drain, weir and the site grading for
the Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir.

() “Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir” shall mean the excavated flood
control facility constructed as depicted in the topographical survey
prepared by EarthWerks dated October 7, 2010, and herein referred to as
the “Reservoir.”

d. “Permanent Easements” shall mean the legally described areas identified
above and generally depicted on the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit A
consisting of both a Drainage Easement and an adjacent Access Easement.
The Drainage Easement, notwithstanding any errors or discrepancies in
the legal description above, shall be a fifty foot (50.00%) wide strip,
measured at a right angle and adjacent to and along the outside perimeter
of the Reservoir as described in the Exhibit A, around the entire perimeter
of the Reservoir. The Drainage Easement overlays, in part and in two
locations, a Ditch Easement granted to Wayne-Winfield Drainage District;
those areas being the southwest corner of Lot 1 of the Kress Creek Flood
Control Reservoir Assessment Plat recorded April 21, 2015 as document
R2015-041457 in DuPage County, lllinois (at the far southwestern
boundary of Lot 1), and along the western boundary of Lot 1 easterly of
the intersection of Kress Creek with the vacated McChesney Road right-
of-way. The Access Easement, notwithstanding any errors or
discrepancies in the legal description, shall be the South one hundred feet
(100.00")(plus or minus) of the Grantor’s property, lying Easterly of the
existing creek for a distance of approximately 1000.0 feet Easterly of the
existing creek, lying within Lot 1, Southerly of the Reservoir, westerly of
the west line of Parcel E-1 and Northerly of the Northerly line of Fabyan
Parkway right-of-way (“ROW”), as dedicated.

) “Routine Access Route” shall mean a twenty foot (20°) wide existing
roadway connecting the Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir to the
Fabyan Parkway Road right-of-way, located immediately east of the Kress
Creek channel.



f. “Routine Surface Maintenance” shall mean periodic lawn mowing, debris
and litter clean-up, disposal and the eradication of noxious weeds and
maintenance related to wildlife control.

Grantee’s Use: The following conditions shall apply to Grantee’s use of the
Easement Area:

a. The Access Easement is granted in perpetuity for the purpose of allowing
the Grantee ingress and egress onto, over, under, above and along the
Grantor’s property to access both the Drainage Easement and the
Reservoir. The Grantee shall limit its access to the Drainage Easement
and the Reservoir to the Routine Access Route for all routine and ordinary
maintenance, operations, inspections, monitoring and repairs, including
any Routine Surface Maintenance Grantee elects to undertake. The
Grantee shall only utilize the remainder of the Access Easement for access
purposes in the event of an emergency, or for major repairs and
maintenance activities, with notice to the Grantor and fully restoring the
Access Easement area following completion of such work as provided for
by Paragraphs 2.e. and 2.g. below.

b. The Drainage Easement is granted in perpetuity for the purpose of
allowing the Grantee ingress and egress onto, over, under, above and
along the Grantor’s property to access the Reservoir and to periodically
perform maintenance on the Reservoir and the Improvements located
within the Drainage Easement, to observe the Reservoir’s operations and
inspect the Improvements. Subject to Grantor’s reservation of avigation
rights in section 3.f below, the Grantee may use the Drainage Easement to
install, construct, build, add to, modify, relocate, repair, replace,
rehabilitate, maintain, inspect, use and operate the Improvements and any
appurtenances located thereon. However, nothing in the Permanent
Easements, or any modifications to the Permanent Easements granted
herein, shall restrict or limit Grantor’s ability to drain storm water into the
Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir.

C. Grantee may from time to time, access the Easement Area and, or, the
Improvements located therein provided, however, that any work which
alters the Easement Area’s grading or the location of the Improvements
shall first be approved in writing by the Grantor.

d. The rights and obligations of the Grantee shall extend to its employees,
officers, agents, consultants, contractors, sub-contractors, assigns and
SuCcessors.

e. Grantee may access the Easement Area at any time, without notice to

Grantor, to undertake routine and ordinary maintenance, operations,
inspections, monitoring and repairs. In the event of an emergency, or for



major repairs and maintenance activities, Grantee may use the Easement
Area, with notice to Grantor, to temporarily store, park, stockpile or stage
vehicles, trailers, equipment, excavated materials, supplies and other items
during such times that the Grantee is engaged in authorized construction,
installation, repair, rehabilitation or maintenance activities thereon.

Within thirty (30) days of the completion of the work contemplated under
this subparagraph, Grantee will promptly remove all such stored items
upon its completion of the authorized work and restore disturbed areas to
the condition they were in before such work. In the event the Grantee fails
to restore the disturbed areas in compliance with this subparagraph, the
Grantor shall give notice to the Grantee identifying the required (or
deficient) work and allowing the Grantee not less than thirty (30) days to
complete or remedy the requested maintenance. If the Grantee fails to
properly remedy the complained of condition(s) within thirty (30) days,
the Grantor has the right, but not the obligation, to undertake the requested
maintenance and to bill the Grantee for Grantor’s expenses doing so.

The Grantee shall obtain any required governmental permits, licenses or
approvals prior to commencing any work within the Easement Area,
excepting as follows: i) work necessary for the preparation of construction
plans and, or, governmental submittals, such as the performance of
surveys, soil borings, environmental audits, etc.; and ii) emergency repairs
and maintenance activities. Upon written request, the Grantee shall
provide the Grantor with copies of any governmental permits, licenses,
approval or submittals for said authorizations relating to Grantee’s work
within the Easement Area. The Grantee shall abide by and comply with
every condition, term or covenant of said governmental permits, licenses
or approvals and shall further do all work in accord with the applicable
local, State and Federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.

Grantee agrees that it will perform any activities hereby authorized within
the Easement Area, or on the Improvements located therein, with
reasonable care, skill and diligence. Grantee shall require any contractor
or consultant, and their sub-contractors, doing work in the Easement Area
to fully compensate the Grantor in the event any of Grantor’s property is
negatively disturbed or damaged by that party. The Grantee shall, at
Grantor's election, pay the Grantor for the costs of repairing, restoring or
replacing the disturbed property, or undertake the repairs and restorations,
for any property damaged by Grantee’s officers, employees, agents,
contractors, consultants, sub-contractors, successors. Repairs or
restoration shall be to a condition as nearly as possible to the condition in
which the land existed before the Grantee's disturbance or damage thereto,
however, the Grantee shall be required to restore disturbed grass with seed
or patch only. Grantee shall further require any contractor or consultant,
and their sub-contractors, doing work in the Easement Area to name

64



Grantor as an additional insured party on any policies which Grantee may
require such contractors, consultants or sub-contractors to maintain.

The Permanent Easements granted herein shall be non-exclusive to the
Grantee and shall not interfere with any existing use of Grantor and the
improvements located in the area.

Grantee shall not permit or suffer any lien to be imposed upon or to accrue
against Grantor or the Easement Areas in favor of Grantee or Grantee’s
agents. Grantee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Grantor and
the Easement Areas from and against any liens and encumbrances arising
out of any labor or services performed or materials furnished by or at the
direction of Grantee and, in the event that any such lien shall arise or
accrue against Grantor or the Easement Areas, Grantee shall promptly take
action to remove and clear any lien upon notice thereof.

Grantee hereby agrees not to interfere with the use of any existing
easement on, under, above or across the Easement Areas or the property of
which the Easement Areas are a part. Furthermore, Grantee hereby agrees
not to interfere with the use of any easement hereafter granted on, under,
above or across the Easement Areas or with any other use of the Easement
Areas so long as such easement, the use thereof or any other use does not
materially interfere with Grantee's rights hereunder.

At all times during any maintenance, repair, construction or work within
the Easement Areas, Grantee shall have in effect, and shall require any
contractors, consultants and subcontractors entering the Easement Areas to
have in effect, worker’s compensation insurance with statutory limits of
coverage and commercial general liability insurance naming Grantor as an
additional insured with waiver of subrogation and with limits not less than
Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for personal injury, including bodily
injury and death, and property damage provided, however, that the
Grantee may self-insure up to the required insurance amounts.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantee, for itself and for those
claiming through Grantee, hereby agrees to release, defend, indemnify and
hold Grantor, Grantor's beneficiary and all of their respective partners,
employees, agents, mortgagees, licensees, contractors, insurers, tenants,
guests and invitees (and their respective commissioners, officers,
directors, shareholders, insurers, partners, employees, agents, mortgagees,
licensees, contractors, guests and invitees, subsidiaries, affiliates,
successors, grantees and assigns) (collectively the "Grantor Indemnitees")
harmless from any and all liability, loss, claims, demands, liens, damages,
penalties, fines, interest, costs and expenses (including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys' fees and litigation costs incurred in connection
therewith) for personal injury, death or damage, destruction or theft of
property that may arise from operations on, or the use of, the Easement

65



3.

Areas (including, without limitation, any such liability, loss, claims,
demands, liens, damages, penalties, fines, interest, costs and expenses that
may arise as a result of the construction, maintenance, restoration,
operation, existence, replacement or repair of the Improvements or the
Permanent Easements) by the Grantee or its agents, employees or
contractors (collectively the "Grantee Group"). Grantee will be responsible
for all safety measures during the construction, maintenance, restoration,
operation, existence, replacement or repair of the Improvements to prevent
injury to person or damage to property. The Grantee's and Grantee
Group's, obligation to indemnify Grantor’s Indemnitees, or release
Grantor’s Indemnitees from any liability, expressly excludes any liability,
loss, claims, demands, liens, damages, penalties, fines, interest, costs and
expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and
litigation costs incurred in connection therewith) arising out of the
negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Grantor, or Grantor’s
Indemnitees. The parties do not waive, by these indemnity requirements,
any defenses or protections under the Local Government and
Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act (745 ILCS 10/1 et seq.) or
otherwise available to either party under the law.

The Grantor’s retained rights and obligations shall be as follows:

a.

Grantor shall have and retain all rights to the use, enjoyment and
occupation of the aforesaid Easement Area, including all obligations
attendant thereto such as maintenance, as set forth below, and payment of
real estate taxes, if any. Grantor may engage in any use, including but not
limited to the continued drainage of storm water over the Easement Area,
provided that Grantor’s act does not adversely affect the intended purposes
for which the Easement Area, or the Improvements therein, have been
designed or are intended to serve.

Grantor shall not construct any structures or improvements on or within
the Easement Area nor shall the Grantor alter, change, destroy or modify
the grading of the Easement Area in any manner that would affect the
designed and intended use of said Easement Area, the Improvements
located thereon, or the Reservoir, without having first received prior
written approval of the Grantee.

Grantor may use and, or, cross the Easement Area in the routing of other
utilities, so long as such activity does not interfere with the intended and,
or, designed use and, purposes, of the Easement Area, or the
Improvements located within the Easement Area, or the Reservoir.
Grantor shall do no act that affects the lateral or sub-lateral support for the
Reservoir, or the Improvements located within the Easement Area, or that
interferes with the operation of said Reservoir or Improvements. Grantor
may grant such other easements, licenses, rights of access or other

66



permission to third parties for the use of the Easement Area as it deems fit
provided, however, no such subsequent use, or change in existing uses,
shall be permitted to interfere with or burden the Easement Area, or the
Improvements located therein, or the Reservoir, or hamper, frustrate or
increase the Grantee’s cost of performing maintenance and repairs to the
Easement Area, the Improvements located therein, or the Reservoir, nor
hamper, frustrate, block, limit or restrict Grantee’s access to the Reservoir
or the Improvements.

d. The right to grant additional access, utility or other easements over, upon
and under, and the right to grant others the right to use the Easement Areas
provided said additional grants of easement do not substantially interfere
with Grantee's use of the Easement Areas.

€. In the event that it becomes necessary, in Grantor's sole discretion, to
relocate the Access Easement, Grantor shall give Grantee written notice
thereof and shall relocate the Access Easement provided, however, that the
relocation shall not defeat Grantee’s right to access. All reasonable costs
of any such relocation shall be borne by Grantor.

f. The Grantor hereby reserves for itself and the general public all avigation
rights and privileges (including, but not limited to, a right of flight for the
passage of aircraft) in and through the airspace above the Easement Area
and Grantee shall not construct nor permit to stand on or pass through the
Easement Area any building, structure, poles, trees, vehicle or any other
object, whether natural or otherwise, of an elevation in excess of 100 feet.

The Permanent Easements herein granted shall run with the land and shall be
binding on all lessees, successors, heirs, devisees, and assigns of the Grantor and
the Grantee. The Grantee shall record this easement grant at its sole expense and
provided a recorded copy to Grantor.

There shall be no other fees or charges allowed by either party excepting those
fees and charges expressly provided for herein.

Grantor shall be responsible for the Routine Surface Maintenance of the
Easement Area during such times that the Grantee is not engaged in work
thereon. Grantee shall be responsible for performing Routine Surface
Maintenance of the Easement Area at such times the Grantee is engaged in work
within the Easement Area. This provision is not intended to create any new or
different obligation on the part of the Grantor than those obligations the Grantor
would normally have under the law but, instead, is intended to ensure that the
Grantor adequately mows and cleans up his/her/its property such that the
Easement Areas and Improvements may be utilized and function as intended
(e.g., pipe does not become clogged, site does not erode, etc.). In the event the
Grantor fails to adequately perform Routine Surface Maintenance of Easement

67



Areas in any manner that adversely affects the Easement Area’s drainage, or the
operation of any drainage improvements located thereon, the Grantee shall give
notice to the Grantor identifying the required (or deficient) work and allowing
the Grantor not less than thirty (30) days to complete or remedy the requested
maintenance. If the Grantor fails to properly remedy the complained of
condition(s) within thirty (30) days the Grantee has the right, but not the
obligation, to undertake the requested maintenance and to bill the Grantor for
Grantee’s expenses doing so.

Notices sent under this Easement Agreement shall be sent via first class mail or
personal delivery as follows:

If to Grantor:

DuPage Airport Authority
Executive Director

2700 International Drive
West Chicago, I 60185

If to Grantee:

County of DuPage
Stormwater Director

421 N. County Farm Road
Wheaton, IL 60187

Whenever any provision of this Grant of Easements requires one party (the first
party) to undertake any review or do any act or give its consent or approval to the
other party (second party), the first party shall not unreasonably delay, withhold,
condition or deny the act, review, consent or approval.

The Permanent Easements granled herein shall be subject to all covenants,
casements and restrictions of record, resolutions and regulations, questions of
survey, and rights of any parties which would be revealed by a physical inspection
of the Easement Areas. Grantee acknowledges that the Permanent Easements
may overlay or encroach upon other easements of record including, but not
limited to, an easement in favor of the Wayne-Winfield Drainage District.
Grantor makes no representation or warranty regarding Grantee’s rights hereunder
in the event of such conflict or encroachment, and Grantee accepts the Permanent
Easements subject to such limitations; Grantee’s rights relative to those portions
of the Drainage Easement that overlay, in part, the Ditch Easement granted to the
Wayne-Winfield Drainage District shall be subject to such limitations as
necessary to bring the Grantee’s use and enjoyment of the Drainage Easement
into conformity with any retained easement rights of the Wayne-Winfield
Drainage District, or its successor in interest, over said portions of the Ditch
Easement. If necessary, Grantee agrees to take all action necessary at its sole cost

68



to remove any such conflicts or encroachments. In addition to Grantee’s
obligations to defend and indemnify Grantor as stated in paragraph 2 of this
Agreement and not in lieu thereof, Grantee agrees to defend and indemnify
Grantor for any such action(s) to remove conflicts or encroachments and for

claims arising out of Grantee’s use of the Permanent Easements and/or Grantor’s
grant of the Permanent Easements.

Dated this day of , 2015.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this easement to be
executed on the date written above.

GRANTOR: DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY, AN ILLINOIS SPECIAL DISTRICT

By: Attest by:
Name: David Bird Name: Mark Doles
Title: Executive Director Title: Asst. Secretary,
DuPage Airport Authority
Board of Commissioners

GRANTEE: COUNTY OF DUPAGE

By: Attest by:
Name: Daniel J. Cronin Name: Paul Hinds
Title: Chairman Title: County Clerk

69



Exhibit A — Legal Description of Kress Creek Reservoir [to be inserted




THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 8 AND THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN DUPAGE COUNTY,
ILLINQIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL "“E-1” OF THE PLAT
OF SURVEY RECORDED JANUARY 26, 1988 AS DOCUMENT R88-008315 AND
ALSO RECCRDED MARCH 24, 1988 AS DOCUMENT R88-028344, BEING A
PLAT OF SURVEY IN SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, SAID
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 7, THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 18 AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 17 IN SAID
TOWNSHIP 3% NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID PARCEL
“E-1” HAVING AN ILLINOIS EAST ZONE GRID BEARING OF SOUTH (€O
DEGREES 00 MINUTES 58 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 1,001.52
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 8% DEGREES 59 MINUTES 02 SECONDS WEST,
135.42 FEET TC THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES
03 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST, 610.97 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY AN
ARC LENGTH OF 215.85 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 30
DEGREES 06 MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST) WITH A RADIUS OF 205.00
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST,
27.10 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 65 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 10 SECONDS
WEST, 133.23 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF
187.28 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 70 DEGREES 5% MINUTES
13 SECONDS WEST) WITH A RADIUS OF 909.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 76
DEGREES 53 MINUTES 16 SECONDS WEST, 73.97 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
80 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WEST, 75.75 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 86 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WEST, 95.20 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 795 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 42 SECONDS WEST, 23.96
FEET; THENCE NORTH 86 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST,
47.90 FEET; THENCE NORTH 82 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 41 SECONDS
WEST, 77.30 FEET; THENCE NORTH 79 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 12
SECONDS WEST, 118.54 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 11 MINUTES
23 SECONDS WEST, 9.80 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 75 DEGREES 35 MINUTES
54 SECONDS WEST, 6.31 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF THE WAYNE-
WINFIELD DRAINAGE DITCH EASEMENT PER AGREEMENT FILED SEPTEMBER
18, 1912 IN CASE NUMBER 4479 OF THE DUPAGE COUNTY CIRCUIT
COURT; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 01 SECONDS WEST,
135.79 FEET ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE; THENCE NORTH 66 DEGREES
12 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST, 25.28 FEET; THENCE NORTH 38
DEGREES 25 MINUTES 47 SECONDS EAST, 35.14 FEET; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 14.84 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF
NORTH 09 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF
14.64 FEET; THENCE NORTH 19 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 56 SECONDS
WEST, 18.35 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 101,13
FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 20 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 16
SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF 72.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60
DEGREES 51 MINUTES 27 SECONDS EAST, 201.00 FEET; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 56.57 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF
NORTH 30 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF
53.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 55 SECONDS
WEST, 39.58 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 58.00
FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 15 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 38
SECONDS WEST) WITH A RADIUS OF 106.21 FEET; THENCE

EXHIBIT

! b




NORTHWESTERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 68.58 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF
NORTH 18 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF
39.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 69 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 11 SECONDS
EAST, 75.36 FEET; THENCE NORTH 56 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 36
SECONDS EAST, 34.35 FEET; THENCE NORTH 36 DEGREES 52 MINUTES
55 SECONDS EAST, 34.77 FEET; THENCE NORTH 42 DEGREES 27
MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST, 30.98 FEET; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY AN
ARC LENGTH OF 76.49 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 08 DEGREES
45 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF 65.00 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 24 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, 50.16
FEET; THENCE NORTH 16 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST,
35.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 25 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 57 SECONDS
WEST, 59.99 FEET; THENCE NORTH 35 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 31
SECONDS WEST, 64.98 FEET; THENCE NORTH 33 DEGREES 25 MINUTES
47 SECONDS WEST, 55.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 2% DEGREES 42
MINUTES 42 SECONDS WEST, 75.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 33 DEGREES
13 MINUTES 53 SECONDS WEST, 30.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 26
DEGREES 21 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 50.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH
28 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST, 40.00 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 35 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 15 SECONDS WEST, 25.00 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 35 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 15 SECONDS WEST, 25.00
FEET; THENCE NORTH 28 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST,
40.15 FEET; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 160.75 FEET,
(A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 55 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 05 SECONDS
WEST) WITH A RADIUS OF 172.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 82 DEGREES 32
MINUTES 31 SECONDS WEST, 22.88 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 83 DEGREES
12 MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST, 22.42 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 53
DEGREES 52 MINUTES 18 SECONDS WEST, 44.78 FEET TO A POINT ON
SAID EASTERLY LINE OF THE WAYNE-WINFIELD DRAINAGE DITCH
EASEMENT; THENCE NORTHERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 36.69 FEET, (A
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 27 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST)
WITH A RADIUS OF 145.00 FEET ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE; THENCE
NORTH 27 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 41 SECONDS EAST, 45.00 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 24 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 14 SECONDS EAST, 69.57
FEET; THENCE NORTH 19 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST,
25.77 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 77.19 FEET, (A
CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 53 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 08 SECONDS EAST)
WITH A RADIUS OF 65.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES 07
MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST, 37.13 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES
02 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST, 30.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 82
DEGREES 03 MINUTES 38 SECONDS EAST, 64.92 FEET; THENCE
EASTERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 28.13 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF
SOUTH 78 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF
250.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 75 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 53 SECONDS
EAST, 41.90 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 194.00
FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 40 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 18
SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF 1592.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTHERLY
AN ARC LENGTH OF 117.81 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 63
DEGREES 11 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF 58.80
FEET; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY AN ARC LENGTH OF 260.35 FEET, (A
CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 89 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 42 SECONDS EAST)
WITH A RADIUS OF 237.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 57 DEGREES 42
MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST, 170.39 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY AN
ARC LENGTH OF 310.92 FEET, (A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 28

71



DEGREES 52 MINUTES 34 SECONDS EAST) WITH A RADIUS OF 309.00
FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY CONTAINS 22.742 +/- ACRES.

72



RESOLUTION 2015-1960

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN EASEMENT
AGREEMENT WITH DUPAGE COUNTY

WHEREAS, DuPage County desires a permanent drainage easement and access
easement over certain DuPage Airport Authority (“DAA”) property for the purpose of accessing
and maintaining the Kress Creek Flood Control Reservoir; and

WHEREAS, the DAA deems it to be in the best interests of the DAA to grant the
easement, said Permanent Drainage Easement and Access Agreement being attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the
DuPage Airport Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director, David Bird, to execute the
Permanent Drainage Easement and Access Easement attached hereto as Exhibit A, and to take
whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of the easement agreement.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and
approval.

Juan E. Chavez Michael V. Ledonne
Stephen L. Davis Gregory J. Posch
Charles E. Donnelly Donald C. Sharp
Peter H. Huizenga Daniel J. Wagner

Gina R. LaMantia

Passed and approved by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Airport Authority this
24th day of June, 2015.

CHAIRMAN

SECRETARY

RESOLUTION 2015-1960

73



